
AGENDA 
PINE COUNTY PINE COUNTY BOARD MEETING MlNNli:sOTA 

District 1 Commissioner HaHan 
District 2 Commissioner Mohr 
District 3 Commissioner Chaffee 
District 4 Commissioner Rossow 
District 5 Commissioner Ludwig 

Tuesday, November 15, 2016, 10:00 a.m. 

Board Room, Pine County Courthouse 


Pine City, Minnesota 


A) 	 Call meeting to order 

B) 	 Pledge ofAllegiance 

C) 	 Public Forum. Members of the public are invited to speak on items not on the agenda. Each speaker 
should state hislher name and limit comments to three (3) minutes. 

D) Adopt Agenda 

E) 	 Approve Minutes of November 1,2016 County Board meeting and Summary for publication. 

F) Minutes of Boards, Committees and Correspondence 

Pine County HRA Senior Housing Minutes - regular meeting September 28, 2016 


G) Approve Consent Items 

CONSENT AGENDA 
The consent agenda is voted on without any discussion. Any commissioner may request an item be removed and 
added to the regular agenda. 

1. Review September 2016 Cash Balance (attached) 
I Fund October 31, 2015 October 31, 2016 Increase(Decrease) 
i General Fund 1,671,352 2,278,990 607,638 
! Health and Human (213,676) • (211,268) 	 2,408 
• Services Fund 
I Road and Bridge Fund 1,457,423 1,069,171 (388,252) 

2,638,610 2,116,561 (522,049) 
I TOTAL (inc non-major 
! Land Management Fund 

14,973,167 I 15,809,299 836,132 
funds) 

2. 	 Application for Abatements 
Consider Applications for Local Option Disaster Abatement: 
a. 	 Darryl LeMire, 7210 Bald Eagle Ln, Rutledge, PID 44.0052.026, pay 2016 
b. 	 Martin & Cheryl Evans, 7174 Bald Eagle Ln, Rutledge, PID 44.0052.015, pay 2016 
c. 	 Ken L. Eberhardt, 135 7th St NW, Hinckley, PIn 15.0133.000, pay 2016 

Pine County Board ofCommissioners Page 1 	 November 15,2016 

1 



Consider Application for Abatement: 
a. 	 Dell and Kristen Gross, Pine City Twp, PID 26.0157.004 and 26.0157.002, pay 2016 

3. 	 Food Service Agreement 
Consider for approval Amendment Number Nine to Food Service Management Agreement Between the 
Pine County Jail and A'Viands, LLC reflecting a 2.8% price increase for food service in the jail. 
Agreement effective January 15, 2017. Authorize Board Chair and County Administrator to sign. 

4. 	 New Hire 
Authorize the hiring ofpart-time Deputy Sheriff Cody LaRoue, effective November 21,2016, $21.84 per 
hour, C42, Step 1. 

5. 	 PERA Police Officer Declaration 
Consider approval of Resolution 2016-62 Public Employees Retirement Association Police Officer 
Declaration for part-time deputy sheriff Cody LaRoue. This Resolution/Declaration indicates the 
employee will meet all of the requirements of the Police and Fire Plan membership requirements from his 
date of hire. Authorize Board Chair to sign Resolution. 

6. 	 Training 
Authorize Probation Director Terry Fawcett to attend the AMC Annual Conference, December 5-6,2016, 
in Minneapolis. Director Fawcett serves as the AMC Representative to the Minnesota Association of 
County Probation Officers (MACPO); MACPO will pay for Director Fawcett's conference fee and 
lodging. Mileage at 140 miles round trip @ 0.54 per mile $75.60. Funds are available in the 2016 
Probation budget for mileage. 

REGULAR AGENDA 
RECESS regular board meeting and convene Ditch Authority meeting. 
1. 	 Public Hearing/Partial Abandonment of County Ditch #7 - at 10:00 a.m. or as soon thereafter as 

possible 
A. 	 Reconvene Public Hearing with regard to Petition for Partial Abandonment of County Ditch #7 
B. 	 Presentation by County Engineer 
C. 	 Presentation by Polymet Mining 
D. 	 County Board Questions and Discussion 
E. 	 Open Public Hearing/Comments from the Public 
F. 	 County Board -- additional discussion if necessary. 
G. Consider Partial Abandonment of County Ditch #7 

RECONVENE county board meeting. 

2. 	 Facility Committee 
Pine County Facilities Committee met November 2,2016 and made the following recommendations 
(Minutes attached). Information only_ 

3. 	 Personnel Committee 
Pine County Personnel Committee met November 8, 2016 and made the following recommendations 
(Minutes attached): 

Page 2 	 November 15, 2016Pine County Board o/Commissioners 



, 


Land Services 
A. 	 Acknowledge the resignation ofpart-time temporary Watercraft Inspectors Ron Craig, David Russell, 

Robert Sunstrom, and Jeremiah White effective October 2,2016. 
HHS 
A. Acknowledge the retirement of full-time Social Worker Marlys Mestemacher effective January 13, 

2017 and authorize the backfill of this position to allow the new hire to train with Marlys 
Mestemacher. 

B. 	 Withdraw proposed reclassification proposal Memorandum ofAgreement for HHS Fiscal Officer and 
Human Resources Manager Connie Mikrot to review the position with the county's current grade 
system and bring a recommendation for the position to the December 2016 Personnel Committee 
meeting. 

C. 	 Acknowledge the resignation of full-time Public Health Nurse Karen Engh effective November 18, 
2016 and authorize backfill. 

Public Works 
A. 	 Recommend promotion of Pete Umbreit to Building Maintenance Supervisor at Grade 41 with an 

annual salary of$49,832.28 effective November 14, 2016. 
peso 
A. Approve salary increase for Office Manager Denise Baran to $47,476 effective December 1, 2016 to 

make the position compliant with the Department of Labor (DOL) rule change to the Fair Labor 
Standards Act (FLSA) exempt status. 

B. 	 Acknowledge the resignation of part-time Corrections Officer Jessica Ninefeldt effective November 4, 
2016 and authorize backfill. 

Administration 
A. Reclassify the Administrative Assistant! Administration Office position from B22 to Office 

Manager/Administration at Grade B24. 
B. 	 Change Section 7: PTO ofthe County Policy Manual to accept proposed PTO accrual changes for 

exempt and non-exempt employees. 

Recommendations to be considered at the December 20,2016 county board meeting: 
A. 	 Consider proposed increase per diem paid to Planning Commissioners, Board of Adjustment 

members, and Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee members to $75.00 per diem plus mileage 
and to eliminate the $25.00 per site visit effective January 1, 2017. This recommendation will be 
brought to the December 20, 2016 board meeting. 

B. 	 Consider proposed 2017 salaries for elected official Department Heads at December 20,2016 board 
meeting. 

C. 	 Consensus of the committee to keep Commissioner salary at $21, 844, per diem per meeting at $100 
and mileage reimbursement to follow federal IRS rate for 2017. 

D. 	 Consensus of the committee to recommend a non-union cost of living increase of 1.5% and a market 
adjustment increase of 1.5% for 2017. 

E. 	 Consensus of the committee to recommend the following County Contributions for non- union 
employees for 2017: 

Pine County Board ofCommissioners Page 3 	 November 15.2016 

http:of$49,832.28


Monthly Monthly VEBA 
Premium or HSA Savings 

Plan Contribution Contribution 

672.50 NA 

107.00 

4. 	 Commissioner Updates 
Soil & Water Conservation District 
Law Library 
East Central Solid Waste Commission 
East Central Regional Library 
Pine County Chemical Health Coalition 

5. 	 Other 

6. 	 2017 Budget Discussion 

7. 	 Upcoming Meetings :1Suhject to Change) 
a. 	 Technology Committee, Tuesday, November 15,2016,8:30 a.m., Commissioners' Conference 

Room, Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 
b. 	 Pine County Board Meeting, Tuesday, November 15,2016,10:00 a.m., Board Room, Courthouse, 

Pine City, Minnesota. 
c. 	 Mille Lacs Band ofOjibwe Tribal Summit, Wednesday, November 16,2016,9:00 a.m., Events 

Center, Grand Casino-Hinckley, Hinckley, Minnesota. 
d. 	 Arrowhead Counties Association, Wednesday, November 16, 2016, 6:00 p.m., Hampton Inn, 

Duluth, Minnesota. 
e. 	 Northeast Emergency Communications Board (f/k/a Northeast Regional Radio Board), 

Thursday, November 17,2016, 10:00 a.m., Jail Training Room, Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 
f. 	 Rush Line Task Force, Thursday, November 17,2016,3:30 p.m., Maplewood Community Center, 

Room C, 2100 White Bear Avenue, Maplewood, Minnesota. 

Page 4 	 November 15, 2016Pine County Board o/Commissioners 



g. 	 Kanabec-Pine Community Health Board, Monday, November 21,2016,9:00 a.m., Board Room, 
Pine County Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 

h. 	 Public Health Planning Committee, Monday, November 21, 2016, immediately following 
Kanabec-Pine Community Health Board, Board Room, Pine County Courthouse, Pine City, 
Minnesota. 

1. 	 Lakes & Pines Community Action Council, Monday, November 21, 2016, 10:00 a.m., 1700 
Maple Avenue East, Mora, Minnesota. 

J. 	 Negotiation Committee, Tuesday, November 22, 2016, 8:00 a.m., Commissioner Conference 
Room, Administrator's Office, Pine County Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 

k. 	 Snake River Watershed, Monday, November 28, 2016, 9:00 a.m., Kanabec County Courthouse, 
Mora, Minnesota. 

l. 	 Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee, Wednesday, November 30, 2016, 9:00 a.m., Jury 
Assembly Room, Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 

m. 	NLX, Wednesday, November 30, 2016,10:00 a.m., Board Room, Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 
n. 	 Extension Committee, Thursday, December 1,2016,3:00 p.m., Audubon Center of the North 

Woods, Sandstone, Minnesota. 
o. 	 Soil & Water Conservation District, Thursday, December 1, 2016, 3:00 p.m., NRCS Office, 260 

Morris A venue, Hinckley, Minnesota. 
p. 	 AMC Annual Conference, Monday-Tuesday, December 5-6, 2016, Hyatt Regency, Minneapolis, 

Minnesota. 
q. 	 Pine County Board Meeting, Wednesday, December 7, 2016,10:00 a.m., Pine County History 

Museum, 6333 H C Andersen AIle, Askov, Minnesota. 

8. Adjourn 

Page 5 	 November 15. 2016Pine County Board ofCommissioners 



MINUTES 

OF THE 


PINE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Regular Meeting 


Tuesday, November 1, 2016 - 10:00 a.m. 

Pine County History Museum, 6333 H C Andersen Aile, Askov, Minnesota 


Chair Curt Rossow called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Present were Commissioners Steve Hallan, Josh 
Mohr, Steve Chaffee and Matt Ludwig. Also present were County Attorney Reese Frederickson and County 
Administrator David Minke. 

The Pledge ofAllegiance was said. 

Chair Rossow called for public comment. Commissioner Mohr stated his appreciation to the Pine County 
Sheriff's Office and Sentence- to-Serve crew who will be working with the Snake River Conservation Club in 
the upkeep of the gun range located in Chengwatana State Forest. 

Chair Rossow requested the following revision to the Agenda: 
1. 	 Addition: Regular Agenda Item No. 6A: Schedule a Special Meeting-Committee of the Whole 

(Budget Committee) meeting. 
2. 	 Revision: Consent Agenda Item No.5: Change of start date for part-time dispatcher Alexis Reed. 

Commissioner Ludwig moved to approve the amended Agenda. Second by Commissioner Hallan. Motion 
carried 5-0. 

Commissioner Chaffee moved to approve the Minutes of the October 18, 2016 County Board Meeting and 
Summary for publication. Second by Commissioner Mohr. Motion carried 5-0. 

Minutes ofBoards, Committees and Correspondence 
Pine County Chemical Health Coalition Minutes October 10,2016 
Pine County Land Surveyor Monthly Report - October 2016 

Commissioner Hallan moved to acknowledge the Minutes ofBoards, Committees and Correspondence. 
Second by Commissioner Mohr. Motion carried 5-0. 

Commissioner Hallan inquired of Land Services Director Kelly Schroeder if the list ofproperty owners was 
now the complete list of local option disaster abatements listed on the Consent Agenda. Schroeder stated there 
are currently a few more outstanding but are processed as the documentation is returned to her office. 

Commissioner Mohr moved to approve the amended Consent Agenda. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
1. 	 October, 2016 Disbursements 


Approve Disbursements Journal Report, October 1, 2016-0ctober 31, 2016. 


2. 	 Applications for Local Option Disaster Abatement 

Approve: 


A. 	 Debra Sommers & Matthew Halvorson, 5583 Royal River Rd, Braham, PID 29.5098.000, pay 
2016 

B. 	 Dale Schmakel, 56671 Beaver Tail Rd, Askov, PID 30.0059.002, pay 2016 
C. 	 Donald & Virginia Knight, 27829 Twin Ponds Loop, Sturgeon Lake, PID 31.0151.000, pay 2016 
D. 	 Rosalyn Krueger, 7196 Bald Eagle Ln, Rutledge, PID 44.0052.007, pay 2016 

Full Minutes - Pine County Board of Commissioners Page 1 	 November 1, 20\ 6 



E. 	 Timothy & Lavonne Sullivan, 8875 Cathedral Pines Dr, Sturgeon Lake, PID 46.5165.000, pay 
2016 

F. 	 John Nosbusch, 8851 Cathedral Pines Dr, Sturgeon Lake, PID 46.5168.000, pay 2016 
G. 	 Judith Koch, 8801 Cathedral Pines Dr, Sturgeon Lake, PID 46.5173.000, pay 2016 
H. 	Bruce & JoAnne LaMere, 7218 Bald Eagle Ln, Rutledge, PID 44.0052.009, pay 2016 

3. 	 Lease for Lawful Gambling Activity and Premises Permit Application 
Approve Lease for Lawful Gambling Activity and Premises Permit Application for Northern Pine Riders 
to conduct Minnesota lawful gambling at Doc's Bar & Grill, 34427 Majestic Pine Dr, Sturgeon Lake 
(Windemere Twp). 

4. 	 Contract Between State of Minnesota Department of Human Services and Pine County Health & 
Human Services 
Approve contract between MN Department of Human Services and Pine County Health and Human 
Services (Adult Mental Health Services) for the period of January 1, 2017 through December 31,2018 
and authorize Pine County Board Chair to sign. 

5. 	 New Hire 
A. 	 Approve the hiring ofPart-time Dispatcher Alexis Reed, effective November 15, 2016, $17.11 per 

hour, B23, step 3. 
B. 	Approve the hiring of Part-time Dispatcher Miranda Miller, effective November 2,2016, $17.11 per 

hour, B23, step 3. 
C. 	 Approve the hiring ofPart-time Corrections Officer Scott Arhart, effective November 2,2016, $17.11, 

B23, step 3. 
D. 	 Approve the hiring of Part-time Corrections Officer Zachary Bettschen, effective November 2,2016, 

$17.11, B23, step 3. 
Approve the hiring of Part-time Corrections Officer Nicholas Frisch, effective November 2,2016, 
$17.11, B23, step 3. 

REGULAR AGENDA 
1. 	 Technology Committee 

Commissioner Mohr provided an overview of the Technology Committee meeting held October 18, 2016. 
Mohr stated the Office 365 software, statewide monitoring program, Sheriff's Office Records 
Management System, Social Media Policy, and Pine County emergency phone numbers were discussed. 
Informational only. No board action is necessary. 

2. 	 Dispatch Staffing 
Two part-time dispatcher positions were approved on the Consent Agenda; one full-time dispatcher 
position remains vacant. Administrator Minke stated that in lieu ofhiring the one full-time position, the 
sheriff's office is requesting to hire two part-time positions, with one part-time position potentially 
working into a full-time position. 
Motion by Commissioner Ludwig to approve the hiring ofPart-time Dispatcher Russel Janes, effective 
November 2,2016, $17.11 per hour, B23, step 3; and Part-time Dispatcher Darla Matteson, effective 
November 2,2016, $17.11 per hour, B23, step 3. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion carried 5-0. 

3. 	 Contract Between Pine County and Pine County Veterans' Council 
Veterans Service Officer Ben Wiener stated the Pine County Veterans' Council operates a van that takes 
veterans to medical appointments. Wiener requested approval for the purchase of another van through the 
county fleet department. There would be no cost to the county for the purchase of the van, however the 
county would insure the vehicle under its fleet insurance coverage. 

Full Minutes - Pine County Board of Commissioners Page 2 	 November I, 2016 



Motion by Commissioner Hallan to approve the contract between Pine County and the Pine County 
Veterans' Council, for the fleet purchase ofa van. Contract term is for the period of November 2, 2016 
through December 31, 2023 and authorize Board Chair and County Administrator to sign. Second by 
Commissioner Ludwig. Motion carried 5-0. 

4. 	 Association of Minnesota Counties Delegate Appointment 
Motion by Commissioner Chaffee to approve the following as Association of Minnesota Counties voting 
delegates: Steve Hallan, County Commissioner; Josh Mohr, County Commissioner; Steve Chaffee, 
County Commissioner; Curt Rossow, County Commissioner; Matt Ludwig, County Commissioner; Mark 
LeBrun, County Engineer/Public Works Director; Becky Foss, Health and Human Services Director; and 
David Minke, County Administrator. Second by Commissioner Mohr. Motion carried 5-0. 

5. 	 Waste Cleanup Special Assessment Resolution 
Land Services Director Kelly Schroeder stated in July 2016 Sentence-to-Serve assisted Evergreen 
Recycling in removing approximately 6,000 tires from a property in Pine County. The total cost of 
removal was $18,095. The property owner agreed to a special assessment of $13,717 and the county 
agreed to pay $4,378 out of the solid waste budget. 
Motion by Commissioner Hallan to approve Resolution 2016-61 extending a special assessment on Pine 
County Parcel 43.5282.000 in the amount of$13,717 and authorize Board Chair and County 
Administrator to sign. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion carried 5-0. 

6. 	 Reappointment of County Assessor 
MS §273.061, Subd. 2 requires County Assessors be reappointed every four years. The current term ends 
December 31,2016. 
Motion by Commissioner Hallan to reappoint Kelly Schroeder as Pine County Assessor, term January 1, 
2017 to December 31, 2020. Second by Commissioner Ludwig. Motion carried 5-0. 

6A. 	 Set Budget Committee Meeting 
A Budget Committee meeting will be held as a part of the regular county board meeting November 15, 
2016. 

7. 	 Commissioner Updates 
Arrowhead Counties Association: Chair Rossow stated the following topics were discussed: legislative 

issues and priorities, Minnesota Eligibility Systems, the Blandin Supreme Court case, Payment In Lieu 
ofTaxes (PILT), bonding bill and child protection/allocation. 

East Central Regional Development Commission: Commissioner Hallan stated the Commission received 
their audit report they had a clean audit. A representative from the Minnesota Film Board was 
present; Safe Route to School grant discussed. 

NLX: Commissioner Ludwig stated Frank Loetterle from MnDOT would like to meet with the board to 
discuss railroad crossings. Administrator Minke will contact Mr. Loetterle to invite him to a board 
meeting. 

Mille Lacs Band ofOjibwe meeting: Commissioner Hallan stated the Summit is scheduled for 
November 16,2016 at 10:00 a.m. A presentation will be given by the sheriff, county attorney, 
Health & Human Services, and probation offices. 


Northeast Regional Radio Board: Commissioner Hallan stated a quorum was not present. 


8. 	 Upcoming Meetings 

Upcoming meetings were reviewed. 


Page 3 	 November 1,2016 Full Minutes - Pine County Board of Commissioners 



9. Adjourn 
With no further business, Chair Rossow adjourned the meeting at 10:37 a.m. The next regular meeting of 
the county board is scheduled for November 15, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. at the Board Room, Pine County 
Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 

Curtis H. Rossow, Chair David J. Minke, Administrator 
Board ofCommissioners Clerk to County Board 

Page 4 November 1,2016 Full Minutes Pine County Board of Commissioners 



SUMMARY 

OF 


MINUTES 

OF THE 


PINE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Regular Meeting 


Tuesday, November 1, 2016 - 10:00 a.m. 

Pine County History Museum, 6333 H C Andersen Aile, Askov, Minnesota 


Chair Curt Rossow called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Present were Commissioners Steve HaHan, Josh 
Mohr, Steve Chaffee and Matt Ludwig. Also present were County Attorney Reese Frederickson and County 
Administrator David Minke. 

The Pledge ofAllegiance was said. 

Chair Rossow called for public comment. Commissioner Mohr stated his appreciation to the Pine County 
Sheriffs Office and Sentence-to-Serve crew who will be working with the Snake River Conservation Club in 
the upkeep of the gun range located in Chengwatana State Forest. 

Commissioner Ludwig moved to approve the amended Agenda. Second by Commissioner Hallan. Motion 
carried 5-0. 

Commissioner Chaffee moved to approve the Minutes of the October 18, 2016 County Board Meeting and 
Summary for publication. Second by Commissioner Mohr. Motion carried 5-0. 

Minutes ofBoards, Committees and Correspondence 
Pine County Chemical Health Coalition Minutes - October 10,2016 
Pine County Land Surveyor Monthly Report - October 2016 

Commissioner Hallan moved to acknowledge the Minutes of Boards, Committees and Correspondence. 
Second by Commissioner Mohr. Motion carried 5-0. 

Commissioner Mohr moved to approve the amended Consent Agenda. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

Approve Disbursements Journal Report, October 1,2016 - October 31, 2016. 

Approve the following Applications for Local Option Disaster Abatements: Debra Sommers & Matthew 
Halvorson, 5583 Royal River Rd, Braham; Dale Schmakel, 56671 Beaver Tail Rd, Askov; Donald & 
Virginia Knight, 27829 Twin Ponds Loop, Sturgeon Lake; Rosalyn Krueger, 7196 Bald Eagle Ln, 
Rutledge; Timothy & Lavonne Sullivan, 8875 Cathedral Pines Dr, Sturgeon Lake; John Nosbusch, 8851 
Cathedral Pines Dr, Sturgeon Lake; Judith Koch, 8801 Cathedral Pines Dr, Sturgeon Lake; Bruce & 
JoAnne LaMere, 7218 Bald Eagle Ln, Rutledge. 

Approve Lease for Lawful Gambling Activity and Premises Permit Application for Northern Pine Riders 
to conduct Minnesota lawful gambling at Doc's Bar & Grill, 34427 Majestic Pine Dr, Sturgeon Lake. 

Approve contract between MN Department of Human Services and Pine County Health and Human 
Services (Adult Mental Health Services) for the period of January 1,2017 through December 31,2018. 

Approve the hiring of Part-time Dispatcher Alexis Reed, effective November 15,2016, $17.11 perhour, 
B23, step 3. 

Summary Minutes - Pine County Board of Commissioners Page 1 November 1,2016 



Approve the hiring ofPart-time Dispatcher Miranda Miller, effective November 2, 2016, $17.11 per hour, 
B23, step 3. 

Approve the hiring of Part-time Corrections Officer Scott Arhart, effective November 2,2016, $17.11, 
B23, step 3. 

Approve the hiring of Part-time Corrections Officer Zachary Bettschen, effective November 2,2016, 
$17.11, B23, step 3. 

Approve the hiring of Part-time Corrections Officer Nicholas Frisch, effective November 2,2016, $17.11, 
B23, step 3. 

Motion by Commissioner Ludwig to approve the hiring Part-time Dispatcher Russel Janes, effective 
November 2,2016, $17.11 per hour, B23, step 3; and Part-time Dispatcher Darla Matteson, effective 
November 2,2016, $17.11 per hour, B23, step 3. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion carried 5-0. 

Motion by Commissioner Hallan to approve the contract between Pine County and the Pine County 
Veterans' Council, for the fleet purchase of a van. Contract term is for the period ofNovember 2, 2016 
through December 31, 2023. Second by Commissioner Ludwig. Motion carried 5-0. 

Motion by Commissioner Chaffee to approve the following as Association ofMinnesota Counties voting 
delegates: Steve Hallan, County Commissioner; Josh Mohr, County Commissioner; Steve Chaffee, 
County Commissioner; Curt Rossow, County Commissioner; Matt Ludwig, County Commissioner; Mark 
LeBrun, County Engineer/Public Works Director; Becky Foss, Health and Human Services Director; and 
David Minke, County Administrator. Second by Commissioner Mohr. Motion carried 5-0. 

Motion by Commissioner HaHan to approve Resolution 2016-61 extending a special assessment on Pine 
County Parcel 43.5282.000 in the amount of$13,717. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion carried 
5-0. 

Motion by Commissioner Hallan to reappoint Kelly Schroeder as Pine County Assessor, term January 1, 
2017 to December 31, 2020. Second by Commissioner Ludwig. Motion carried 5-0. 

A Budget Committee meeting will be held as part of the regular county board meeting November 15, 
2016. 

With no further business, Chair Rossow adjourned the meeting at 10:37 a.m. The next regular meeting of 
the county board is scheduled for November 15,2016 at 10:00 a.m. at the Board Room, Pine County 
Courthouse, Pine City, Minnesota. 

Curtis H. Rossow, Chair David J. Minke, Administrator 
Board of Commissioners Clerk to County Board 

The full text ofthe board's Minutes are available at the County Administrator's Office and the county's 
website (www.co.pine.mn.us). Copies may also be requested from the administrator's office. 

Page 2 November I, 2016 Summary Minutes - Pine County Board of Commissioners 

http:www.co.pine.mn.us


.l 

PINE COUNTY BRA SENIOR HOUSING 

510 Fifth Street Office 

Sandstone, MN 55072 


(320) 245-5140 

pinehra@ecenet.com 

Sandstone Manor Finlayson Manor 
510 Fifth Street 6524 Broadway Street 

Sandstone, MN 55072 Finlayson, MN 55735 

The regular meeting of the Pine County HRA Senior Housing Board of Directors was held on 
September 28, 2016, at the Sandstone Manor. Commissioners ofthe HRA present were Board 
Chair Dorothy Stockamp, Cheri Drilling, Greg Kvasnicka, and Jan Oak. Staffmember present 
was Executive Director Janice Gustafson and Resident Managers, Shirley Kroschel and Richard 
Soens and Management Agent Tammy Gehrke. 

I. The meeting was called to order at 1 :50 p.m. by Board Chair D. Stockamp and the Pledge 
ofAllegiance was said. 

2.The Board members reviewed the applications for the Administrative Assistant Position. 

3.The HRA Board minutes from the Special Meeting conducted September 21 , 2016 were 
reviewed by the Board members. A motion was made by G. Kvasnicka and seconded 
by C. Drilling to acceptthe minutes. Motion carried: Yeas 4, Nays 0 

4.The Executive Director Report and the monthly financial statements and investment 
report were presented by J. Gustafson. A motion was made by D. Stockamp and 
seconded by G. Kvasnicka to approve the fmancial statements and the investment 
report. Motion carried: Yeas 4, Nays O. 

5.Resident Managers verbal reports of incidents regarding Jost keys. 

6. Sandstone Manor Resident, MFC attended with support of two other residents and a 
community advocate to discuss and appeal required removal ofthe cat. Management 
Agent, Tammy Gehrke, presented options for continued occupancy and clarified the 
only option available is removal of the cat from the premises and served MFC with a 
Lease Termination effective October 31, 20] 6. 

7.G. Kvasnicka asked for volunteers for a focus group for Pine Co Zoning and Planning. 

8.A motion was made by J. Oak and was seconded by C. Drilling to adjourn the meeting at 
4:10 p.m. Motion carried: Yeas 4, Nays O. 

I 

~)~---r0 ,Jk;~~ IN ~ 
Tammy or:::;Dorothy Stockamp • 

HRA Board Chair Management Agent 

mailto:pinehra@ecenet.com


AGENDA REQUEST FORM 
Date of Meeting: November 15,2016 

[{] County Board 
• Consent Agenda 
o Regular Agenda 5 mimO 10 miDJO 15 mintO OdaerD 

D Penonnel Committee 

D Other _____ 

Ageada Item: October, 2016 Cash Balance 

Department: Auditor-Treasurer 

....A~r!J~ 
Background information on Item: 

October. 2016 Cash Balance 

Action Requested: 

Financiallmpad: 



***** Pine County ***** CArnYJ 
1117/16 11:02AM TREASURF.R'S CASH TRIAL BAlANCE As of 10/2016 Page 2 

Fund 
Beginning 

Balance 
1M 

MQrub 

(~J'leral Rlt~nu... Fund 

Receipts 
msbursements 
P,wrolJ 
Journal Enrrtes 

Fund Total ..... 

4.125.259.01 
591,249.31 
664,323.29
S:n.218.50

3,571.11

907.869.59

5.412,469.91 
5.500.252.51
~t90EUI49.00-

6.548,362.49 

2,446,269.21

12 Health &. Human Sen1cell 420 H&Hs-lnc<ome Maintenance 

Rect!lplll 

Oisbul"k'ments 
Payroll 
journal Entries 

Dept Total ..... . 

2.204.154.92 
48.318.39 
82.202.25

158,331.43
34,385.62 

157.835.67

1.266,629.43 
644,216.68

1,781.265.29
829.808.80 
335,103.74

12 Healtb 8. Human Servtces 430 H&Hs-!kJctal Senices 

Rf'Celpts 

Dbhursements 
SSlS 
P3}'T01I 

Journal Entries 

Dept Total •••.. , 

',76«:1,235,44 
51,561.02 
41.136.10

206,961.70
183,61fU3

54.899.44 

325,869.47

2,058.156.34 
337.713,34

1,893,940.23
1.947,592.89
1,619.253.18 

441.296.34

12 Health &- Human servtces 440 ChIldrens CollaboratiVE 4H&Hs) 

Dept Total •..• ,. 
0.00 

0.00 0.00 

12 Health It Human ServtCf'!l 481 Nurslng-Communlty Health (H&Hs) 

Receipts 

Disbursements 
Pa)TOU 
Journal Earrtes 

235,631.76 
101.020.99 

9,766.13
89.549.10

0.00 

1,104.540,04 
506.826,99
934.506.67
208.540.17 

Curren{ 
Balance 

2,218.989.14 

U!69,051.18 

2.207.531.78

fl tfS 
&,,?-,1 0 qt.)0.00 

Copyright 2010-2015 Integrated Financial Systems 

http:2.207.531.78
http:U!69,051.18
http:2,218.989.14


***** Pine County ***** 
CATHY] 

1117/16 11:02AM TREASURER'S CASH TRIAL BAlANCE As 01 10/2016 Page 3 


.EY.ru! 
De.pt Total ...... 

Beginning 
Balance 

~ 
Month 

7.705.76 

YTD 

128.253.45

Current 
Balance 

107.384,31 

Fund Total •. , •• 673,551.24 475.999,38 904.653.53 231.0ge,29

13 Road & Ilridge Fund 

Receipts 
Disbursements 
Pa)Toll 

Journal F.nUies 

fund Total ..... 

1.220.273.91 
153.911.83 
931,346.41
172,435.81 

1,711.00

951.635.39

7.229.928.45 

6.515.159.40
1,852.993.64

987,121.70 

151.102.89 1.009.171.02 

14 Ditch Malntenance (SrI Fund 

Fund Total •.... 
10.770.48 

0.00 0.00 10,770.48 

20 County-Wide Rehab (Sr) Fund 

Receipts 
Journal Entries 

Fund Total ..... 

189.37 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.01 
001 

0.02 189.39 

22 lMd Management .Fund 

Re<elptll 
Disbursements 
Payroll 

Journal EntrieS 

Fund Total •.... 

2,723.823.99 
97,198.70 

5.003.41
8,204.14

0.00 

83.191.15 

'.327,475.56 
21,383.29
92,505.97

1,820,869.70

601.263.40 2,116.560.59 

24 SST'S llpgrlldes 

Receipts 
0.00 

192.00 192.00 

Copyright 2010-2015 Integrated Financial Systems 



***** Pine County 
CATIiYj ***** 
1117116 1,:02AM TREASUREll'S CASH TRIAL BALANCE As of 10/2016 Page 4 

Beginning J::tWi Current 

.E\ill!4 Balance MQDlh YTD Balance 


Fund Total. , , • , . 192.00 192.00 192.00 

19 Children's Collab (H&Hs) Agem::." fund 440 Childrens CollaboJ'llti\l\!' IH&H$} 

11.409.93 

Rt<t!lpts 0.00 68,846,00 

Olsl>ur~ment5 0,00 63,588.99
Journal Entries 12.95 45.01 


Dept Total" .... 12.96 5.302.08 16,712.01 


FundTotaL .... 11,409.93 12.96 5,302.08 16.112.01 

37 County R.ailroad Authority 

5,791.19 

Disbursements 0.00 27.78

Fund Total. ••• ,. 0.00 27.18- 5,163.41 


38 Building fund 

86.150.49 

O!$bursl'm~nts 29,864.80- 61.548.35
Journal Entries 0.00 43.807.07 


Fund Total. •.... 29.864.80- 23,741.28- 63,009.21 

39 ;:OUSA G.O. Jail Bonds 

1,079.082.29 

mllbu~nts 1,400.00- ,.'41,.805.63
Journal fJltriE'S 0.00 684.225,62 


funUTotal •••.• 1.400.00- 463.580m~ 615,502.28 

40 2012 (;,0. Courthouse Bonds 

906.029.37 

RecetSlf& 0.00 5.02 

Disbursements 1.400.00~ 944,125.00

Journal Entries 0.00 580, t86.45 


Cop}TIght 2010-2015 Integrated Financial Systems 

http:944,125.00
http:1.400.00
http:906.029.37
http:615,502.28
http:1,400.00
http:1,079.082.29
http:29.864.80-23,741.28-63,009.21
http:43.807.07
http:29,864.80-61.548.35
http:86.150.49
http:27.18-5,163.41
http:5,791.19
http:16.112.01
http:5,302.08
http:11,409.93
http:16,712.01
http:5.302.08
http:63,588.99
http:11.409.93


***** Pine County ***** 
CATHYJ 
'117/16 '1:02AM TllEASUR.ER\S CASH TRIAL BAlANCE As of 10J2016 Page 5 

Fund 
Fund. ToW •••.. 

Begl.nning 
Balance 

This 
Mm1tb 

1.>400.00

YIl} 

364.534.53

Current 
Balan~ 

541.494.84 

43 EqUl.pmenf fund 

Journal f.ntries 

Fund Total ••.•• 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

61.088.53 

61,088.53 67.0SS.53 

76 Croup Health Ins Fund 5/1195 IGen} 

ReceiptS' 
Dtsbursl'ments 
Journal Entries 

Fund Total .•... 

642.284.11
311.55UlO 
.302.855.55

5.415.15 

14.111.10 

3.029.431.90 
3.119.140.48

56.496.50 

93,812.08 73tto96.2S

80 Coullty Collections Agenc\' Fund 

Receipts 

Di$bunE'ments 

Journal FJltrt~$ 
Fund Total ..... 

2un9.64 
10.238.05 
25.565.53

0.00 

15.321.48

606.003.64 
511.284.33

160.10 

4.320.59 11.6MW5 

82 Taxes And Penalties Agency Fund 

Retetpis 
DisbW'1lemenlS 

Journal Entries 

Fund Total ••••• 

198,9UI.20 
'1.H12.587.35 

3.651.149.90
0.00 

7.524.837.45 

34.691.624.00 
16.445.261.84
9.162.378.00

9,083.984.16 9,882.902.36 

84 East Central Drug Task Fon:e Agency fur 

R@celpts 

Disbursements 

98,198,03 
0,00 

0.00 
104.160.44 
115.588.23

Copyright 2010-2015 Integrated Financial Systems 



89 

***** Pine County ***** CAUIYJ 
1117/16 11:02AM TREASURER'S CASH TRIAL BALANCE As of 10/2016 Page 6 

Fuml 
Fund Total •••.. 

Ii &. lis Collections Agenl'Y fund 

Receipts 

ms!}uMltl'mellts 

Journal Entnt's 
DeptTotal ..... 

Pund Total •••• 

.>\11 Funds ......... 

Ra:l'.lptll 
Disbursements 
SSIS 
P,Wfoli 
Journal F.1ltrtes 

Total ••.•_.. 

Beginning 
Balance 

801 

18.568,42 

78.568A2 

11.798,311.39 

:rb!! 
M2nth 

0.00 

Non-Ilepartmental 

90.123.06 
164.18~ 

89.285.08
1.213,82 

1,273.82 

12.645.' 10.20 
5,154,111.55

200,981.70
1.443,363.11

80.00 


5,2'40.727.84 


YfD 

10.921.19

186,649.15 
112.183.80

689.917.45
75.452.10

15.452.10

57,688,111.89 
35,213,406.80

1,893.940.23
15.521,713,46

11.930.14 

4,010.981.S4 

Current 
Balance 

81,370..24 

3,116,32 

3.116.32 

15,809,298.93 

Copyright 2010-2015IntE'grated Financial Systf."ms 

http:15,809,298.93
http:3.116.32
http:4,010.981.S4
http:11.930.14
http:1,893.940.23
http:35,213,406.80
http:57,688,111.89
http:15.452.10
http:75.452.10
http:689.917.45
http:112.183.80
http:186,649.15
http:10.921.19
http:5,2'40.727.84
http:1.443,363.11
http:200,981.70
http:5,154,111.55
http:1,273.82
http:89.285.08
http:90.123.06
http:11.798,311.39


TREASURER'S CASH TRIAL BALANCE COMPARISON 


FUND 

I-GENERAL 
12- H&HS 
13 * ROAD &BRIDGE 
22 - LAND 

TOTAL (inc! non-major funds) 

October 31, 2015 

BALANCE 


1,671,351.78 
(213,675.80) 
1,457,423.10 
2,638,610.05 

$14,973,167.05 

October 31, 2016 
BALANCE DIFFERENCE 

2,278,989.74 607,631,96 
(211,267.96) 2,407,84 
1,069,171.02 (388,252.08) 
2,116,560,59 (522,049,46) 

$15,809,298,93 836,131.88 

http:14,973,167.05
http:2,638,610.05
http:1,457,423.10
http:213,675.80
http:1,671,351.78


f'utECOUHT\' 

",-", 


AGENDA REQUEST FORM 

Date of Meeting: November 15. 2016 

[i] County Board 

II Consent Agenda 

o Regular Agenda S miuO 10 minsO 1511110.0 OtbuD 

o Personnel Committee 

o Other _____ 

Agenda Item: Applications for Abatements 

Depart~Dt: AUd~tor-Treasurer 

{~~ td~ 
~t"ft~ 

Background information on Item: 

Application for Local Option Disaster Abatement: 

Darryl LeMire, 7210 Bald Eagle Ln. Rutledge. PID 44.0052.026, pay 2016 

Martin & Cheryl Evans, 7174 Bald Eagle Ln. Rutledge. PIO 44.0052.015, pay 2016 

Ken L Eberhardt, 135 7th St NW, Hinckley. PID 15.0133.000. pay 2016 


Application for Abatement: 

Den & Kristen Gross, Pine City Twp. PIC 26.0157.004 and 26.0157.002. pay 2016 


Action Requested: 

Financial Impact: 



FonnLODA·2 

Application for Local Option Disaster Abatements and Credits - Disaster Area . 
IIyourptOp/!IIty _ bHn ~·fJrct.fTOyedas a re6IJiI« /lis tectJnt dIsasItv fJr~ )IOU may btl tIIigIbIe lD I'fiItCtIINe somtI 
property lax reliefon /his ytNJr'$ pttJptNty lSxe$ as wtJII as fJf'OIItJrlY bmJs(JIIYlIbIe ntIXIyrHIf: The /ypt!I 0I1Bx ,.,you I'fICIJive willdt/JpINId 
on whatIItIryourpn:JpfII1yis ~ whtIther it Is kJt::attr!d within a dtK:ItIIeddiiIII!dfJr or~ 111M. IhI!t lII1IOUftt cI~ 
~ anda l'IIII'RbeI'ofothtIr1at::lDt$. II'*'~,.. not6InIIJdy ~yourj1IrIfNff1y. you!lhDuldCOfIIII&tyourcounIy 
~ 0Ifbp and ~ IMI a coumy BII$IIS$Of ......1he dM1tItgtI for /lis p&II'fX)$e oIlflCIIMng dIsa6tsr f'f!JIiel 

County of: I OCT 2 5 

1a\tle~~:OYes 0"., 

STOP: The Information below Is for OFFICE USE ONLY 


Homestead Properly: 
This strudunt Is owr 50% damaged and ...... for 8ft ablUemenI 01 property u.s payable THIS YEAR. 

'" ~0-'CnIdIs for tuft payable next year wU1 be automaIicaIly caJcuIated and shown en f'I8)II year's" 
statement 

NcIft..tlcMR.....d Properly: 
this SInJCIUr8 II over ~~ and quaIIies for qualifies for an abatsment at prcpeI1y taxes payable THIS YEAR. 
this stn.ICtur8 1& over sew. ~ and qua!II!!! lor 9U!!!!: for.8 credit of propefty taxes payable NEXT VENt 

-4;,:;r~;'~~;:1W_nN"_~".-

0510 

11i /iJfiv 
a.._.lili 



FormLODA·2 

Application for Local Option Disaster Abatements and Credits - Disaster Area 
IfJ'I'Ufp!t)ptNty has IJtJen ti.iImlIged ordfIsIJr:IyfJd as illfISUHoflhe IfICfII'ItdiUstfNOf emtIi'fJBI1CY, you /MY bII tIIIgII:JIe to ffJCfJrive some 
proptII1y tax MIle(on !his yur's propetty tI.mIs 86 tIIfIIII_ proptI/tJI /axes psyMJIs nsxtyear. ThtI /ypfI ofIlIxIflllfllyou IfJCtIIve will~ 
on II/IIJtIIh8ryourpIT1pfIIty Is ~ whetherit Is ltJcaIed within 8 r:ItIdIIted ~Of'~..... IH IIff/I(1UI1f 01~ 
~ 1Ntd" f'fUt1IIJtIf 01oIhtIr~. Ifan IItIStI8IIOf has not IIInNIdy ~yourPfDI/fIIf.Y. you 1IhouIdconIIIctyourcounty 
~$ oIfictJ MId IfIIf'IUIISt that II CDUnIy ~~ the damtI{/ttI for lhe~ofI8CfIiWtg diasItIrteIIel 

County of: I OCT 2 6 2016 

( ) 

Z'4l S5431 

STOP: The information below Is for OFFICE USE ONLY 

Homeatead Property: 
l'tis SfI'UCtl.ft Is OYer 50% CIamaged and qualifies for an abatement of property taxes payable THIS VEAfl 

'" Homestead ~ Credits far taxes payable next ~will be ~ calculated and shown Qf\'"years. 
~. 

~Property: 
l'tis ~ is over 50% damaged and quaiftes far qualifies tor an abaIemenI of ptq.lerty taxes payable THIS veNt 
This att\aCtUfe is OYer 50% ~ and quafiIies ror qualifies tor a credit of p!O!)efty taxes payable NEXT YEAR. 

Reportof iIw 1.'IIga1kln! I hemIby repott!hat I have ~hl~made in ItII8 appIt.aIIon and fndhl ..1) be. fcIaIIII: 

\~ ,. 0+too-1e( or. rna¥\ J>10tY~ 


0r;9o 


http:SfI'UCtl.ft


FormLODA·2 

Application for Local Option Disaster Abatements and Credits - Disaster Area 
Ifyour f)It1pfIf'Iy h8s bHn d8111i111J«/ ordestrrljlfld 11$ 8 MSrJIt Df1M recent disIIGteror~ you may bit IIIIgibIe 10 tr1Ct/1tt(18OmII 
JJI(JpeI'ty tax reliefon lhI$years propretty IlIXII$ 8S wtdlIS f)It1pfIf'Iy IaXII$ /NIyab/tI ntIXtyur.. ThilI'yptI DftIIX ,..""you tr!JOfIiVrI tMII d/IpIInd 
01'1 whtJ/IJar)f1url1tr1PtNtyis ~ tIII'htIIIJerit is ItJcatttd within " dIJcIiIi'ed tfIusIIttIrDl' ~IIIWI. lhitllltltllJlrfd ~ 
sustain«!. and" numberoft1IItt!Jr I'at::Ior$. IIIIn ~hasnot IIIrudy ~yourPff'PIN'lY, you !Ihc1uId tx:JnIIIdyour county 
8S8tIS6or'S oIfictJ ~ ffIQU(JiIf lhIIt 8 county~ I"Mw IhiI t:IINrI;Jge for 1M putpOStI DftrIJCt!JMng tJIs.tIsIerIfJIIef. 

OCT 3 i 2016 
County of: E"'-1#f-+D. ________...........l
Aa..J£ 

STOP: The Information below Is for OFFICE USE ONLY 

ateck 1w1llP.._ box(ee,fa' .........non-homll • .,~ 


Homestead Property: 
This structure is (MIl' 50% damaged and quafifies for an abidement at pn::lPetty 1aXe$ payable THIS YEAR. 

'" Homestead Oisasaer CnKIi&s for taxes pay;abIe next YUaf will be ~ calculated and shown on nut years tax 
statament. 

Non-boInaataad Property: 
this SfJ'UCtUf8 is OYer 50% damaged and qualifies for qualifies for an abatement of pn::lPetty taxes payable THIS YEAR 
This structure is (MIl' ~ damaged and quaIIftes for qualifies for a CRKIit of ~ tax8$ papbI! NEXT YEAR 

30 Jl o.{. Leoc\t~( on rna){lttOOr-

0-rflo 

, 



CommiSsioner of Revenue Abatement Form 1 

APPLICATION 	FOR ABATEMENT .. HOMESTEAD FORM'. (M.S. 376.192) 

DATE: 1I__L}IlL? For TUM Levied In:Q?0S 
Abatement' Ai j fa ~ wb And pay8b.. ln:0t2Jlfl 

P..... Print Or Type 

Applicants Name: ~....u..-L~::;;;L.Il..u..Ld...J...J.::...I..I.o~~_ 
Applicants SSN: 
Telephone (Home): __--:-_.."..-....,.--...,---_ 
T ne one: 
Description Of Property: Property 10 or Parcel Number: .;;...7_.'f.p;;;"';':..o.::..J~':"':"'::::"";;""-'--___ 

Street Address: 0.... 

T ownshiplCity: 

School District: 


Minn, Stat,. Sec. 315.192. Subd. 1 requil'8l the nama and social security numbet1 01.11 pI'OPItI'ly ownel'l dalming home$tead to 'NIfy that !bey are 

not receiving I'I"IOI'e than one~· Your aocI8I MCI.IIrttr number Is pftvate information. If you faN to PfOV/de the sodaIleCIJt!ty number., 
this property will not be eligible fer the hamestNd clasllfication State law pt'CMt:IU fer ccunty government to make lIOCiaf security I1UI"I'Ibitrr. lMIilabllt 

only to 1M Minnesota Department of RIManue. 

~~6 
~Name: Na~ hlW1SO(l Sodal Security Number: --lO.::....:...n.!o-·...z::!-'-"h.!~__ 
~~{S
~Name: 	 r..K2SoA ~,(;14/)jCYl Social SeCt.llity Number: _t2"",n~~t~LA_;.<","'__ 

__________ Social Security Number; ________
OWner's Name: 

SodaJ Security Number: ________Owner's Name 

Applicants Request: 
Applicant RequntllNt the real eeta1e described above be cIanified for the lIbI:M!I year as real estatB used for the purpoINI$ of a ~ and 
that !tie taxabte v.lue and !tie taxes for the above ,..,. be reduced accordingjy. Th. $bItement is a true II'1d fu,l1 statement of aU facta k:nown to the 

applicant relative to til. mattar, I 
Applicants Signature: ~uj:::l<J)(U2 

NOTE: Minnesota Statutes 1988, Sedion tJ0941, "WtIoewf, in making any statemenl. oral orwr!tten. wNch is required or authorized ~ law to be 

made as II basis of impoeing, l'f!Idl.ieing, or abating any tax or aeeeament. intentionally INIIkes any statement .. to any ma1e08I matter wNcI\ the 

maker 01 the statement knows is false may be sentenoed, unleU othetwiSe provided by law, to imprisonment for not me,. than one year or to 
~ of a fine of not mert than 13,000, or both.~ 



__ __ _ 

Commissioner of Revenue Abatement Form 1 

APPLICATION 	FOR ABATEMENT - HOMESTEAD FORM 
(M.S. 371.192) 

For Toaalevied In: ;:<()IS 
And Payable In:at;tit,p 

P.... PrInt Or Type 

Property 10 or Parcel Number: 

Applicants Mailing Addreu: 

~ '71"/~ ~W 

Str~t~dr~: 	 ~~~~~~~~~~~·[rlV 
Township/City: 
School District: 

Legal Description: pert- 0+ -tv~ Nu)J~ NE 1'-1 
sec 31~38 (2flGJ=1

QWNERSHle DATA 
lNVe dedare that I/We owned and ~ the property desc:ItIed ab<Mt for the of ~ on January 2,Jtli':i(or 
Dec 1, mid-ytII_ ~') and that such occupaooy began 0 . ' pa) 4= and that myIOur GWnIIfShip ill 
evidef'tCed by. -r(\.l;.H~ ;, deed dated J~1 , II IQ . r2Q,J r which p~ for a toWsnal1ld cwnerahip intereSt by a total 

of--L~. 

Minn. Stat, See. 315.192. SUbd. 1 requires the NIITI!eS and SOCial security numbers 01.-~ owners deming homestead to verify that they are 
not receMng I"IIOAt than one hon'Inleed. Your .acialllllCUril:J number Is private InfonMCIon. If you fail 10 prov1de the social MClJrty numbers. 
thill property will not be eligtie for the homes1rtad dauifk:ation state law pI'O'IIides for ~ govemmant 10 mafut SOCial securIIy numbers t\IIIllable 

only to !tie Minnesota Depal'tmetlt of Revenue. 

~$[..s 	llla:tasrrt .CuXhscYJ an ilC:SOCial Security Number. 

~Siecdtl.5 
OWAef!s-Name: 	 .1as0lJ :;;W?{JSl?rJ Social Security Number: """,O:...a.o-,--..u£"",,7zt: 

__________ SocIal SecuriIy Number. ________Owner's Name: 

__________ Social Security Number ________
Owner's Name: 

Applicants Requeat: 
Applicant Requesm that the real estate described atIove be daMIfIed for the above re.r as real 4II'lJtat8 used for ttle purpoeea of a I'loI'neItead ItId 
that the taxable Yakle ItId It!e taxes for the above )'HI' be l1Iduced ii1CCOI'dingIy. This stablment ill • true and full statemetlt of •• !'ads known to the 

appliCant telatll/4J to this matter. 	 ~i'JAHA ) (}--- . 
Applicant's Signature: ~~ 

NOTE: MinnesOOa statutes 1988, Section 809.41, "Whoever. in making any 1iItatIII'Mnt, oral or written, wf1k:h ill required or authCtiZed by IlIW 10 be 

made as a basis of il'l'llPO$ing. reducing. or Ibatll'lg any tax or ~ Intentionall\' makes any ~ as to any mat!ItiaI mattw which !tie 

maker of the ataf8l1'lent knows Is faise may be sentenced, unless otherwise pn:Mded by law. to impmwnment fior not more than one rear or to 

f'!Y'TI8nt of a fine of not mOOt than $3.000. or both-· 



PINE COUNTY 
MlNHDOTA 

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 

Date of Meeting: November 15, 2016 

[Z] County Board 

III Consent Agenda 

o Regular Agenda 5 minsD ·10 minsO 15 minsO OtherD 

D Personnel Committee 

D Other _____ 

Agenda Item: Fo~d Service Agreement - Amendment Number Nine 
"" 

s Office - Jail Division ent: S ri 

Background information on Item: 

Acknowledge Amendment Number Nine to Food Service Management Agreement Between the 
Pine County Jail and A'Viands, LLC reflecting a 2.8% price increase for food service in the jail. 

Action Requested: 

Signatures acknowledging the amended pricing schedule effective January 15, 2017 

Financial Impact: 

Based on current ADP (average daily population) a 2.8% increase equates to approximately 
$7,500 annually to the 2017 budget. 

Note: This amount has already been added to the 2017 budget request for the jail. 



AMENDMENT NUMBER NINE 

TO FOOD SERVICE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 


BETWEEN THE PINE COUNTY JAIL AND A'VIANDS, LLC 


This Amendment Number Nine is made by and between the Pine County Jail 
(hereinafter referred to as "Client"), whose address is 635 Northridge Drive NW, Suite 130, Pine 
City, Minnesota 55063, and A'viands, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company, with offices at 
1751 County Road B West, Suite 300, Roseville, Minnesota 55113 (hereinafter referred to as 
"A'viands"). 

WHEREAS, A'viands and Client have entered into a Food Service Management 
Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement") , effective January 15, 2008 (as 
amended); and 

WHEREAS, both parties now desire to amend said Agreement upon the terms and 
conditions stated herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, intending to be legally bound hereby, mutually agree 
hereto that the Agreement is hereby modified as follows: 

1. 	 Pricing 
Financial exhibit shall be amended to reflect the following pricing schedule: 

Inmate Meal Count Range Base price 

36 -45 $3.54 
46-55 $3.28 
56-65 $2.97 
66-75 $2.79 
76-85 $2.65 
86 -100 $2.51 

101 -115 $2.30 
116 & Above $2.21 

This Amendment Number Nine is effective as of January 15, 2017. All other terms and 
conditions of the original Agreement (as modified from time to time) shall remain in full force and 
effect unless otherwise amended as provided in the Agreement. 

COUNTY OF PINE, MN 	 A'VIANDS, LLC 

By: J!f~ 	 By: "'-j#-- rt=
!I 


Name: --J-'!ff Lf/-et5&fj Name: Mitch Speicher 

Title: Sheriff Title: CFO 

Date: {(f) - tJ -(~ Date: (0 (0 {I <,e 

Page 1 of2 



8y:_____________ 

Name_____________ 

Title:____________ 

Date:____________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

BY:~ 

Name: ?.2e~h<'J.tl\'(.,k":?0<\ 
Title: Pine County Attorney 

Date: I0hJ-./( (p, , 

Page 2 of2 



AGENDA REQUEST FORM 

Date of Meeting: November 15, 2016 

[Z] County Board 
III Consent Agenda 
D Regular Agenda 5 minsD 10 minsO 15 minsD OtherD 

D Personnel Committee 


D Other _____ 


Agenda ltem:_N_e_w_H_ir_e________________ 

D~ment: Sheriff 
D~~~~-re~~====:------ci---~----~------------------------

Background information on Item: 

Sheriff's office was approved in 2016 to have up to four part time deputies. 

Action Requested: 

Acknowledge the hiring of Cody LaRoue as part time deputy effective Nov~, 2016. Starting" 
pay: C42 step one (1) at $21.84/hour. 

Financial Impact: 

Funds are in the 2016 and 2017 budget. 



------

PINE COUNTY 
M1NtG:SOTA 

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 

Date of Meeting: November 15,2016 

C8J County Board 
~ Consent Agenda 
D Regular Agenda 5 mins._ 10 mins. 15 mins._ Other 

D Personnel Committee 


D Other 


Agenda Item: Police Officer Declaration for Deputy Cody LaRoue 

Department: Administrator 

-He fhanq <./' 

Background information on Item: 

Resolution to include Deputy Cody LaRoue in the Police and Fire PERA account at full funding levels 
effective from date ofhire. 

Action Requested: 

Declare that the position of Deputy Sheriff held by part-time deputy Cody LaRoue meet all of the Police 
and Fire Plan membership requirements for PERA. 

Financial Impact: 

Budgeted for position. 



PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
POLICE OFFICER DECLARATION 2016-62 

WHEREAS, the policy of the State ofMinnesota as declared in Minnesota Statutes 353.63 is to give special 

consideration to employees who perfonn hazardous work and devote their time and skills to protecting the property and 

personal safety of others; and 

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes §353.64 permits governmental subdivisions to request coverage in the Public 

Employees Police and Fire plan for eligible employees of police or sheriffs departments whose position duties meet the 

requirements stated therein and listed below. 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Sheriff's Department of Pine County hereby declares that the position of Deputy 

Sheriff currently held by Cody LaRoue meets all of the following Police and Fire Plan membership requirements: 

I. 	 Said position requires a license by the Minnesota peace officer standards and training board under 
sections 626.84 to 626.863 and this employee is so licensed; 

2. 	 Said position's primary (over 50%) duty is to enforce the general criminal laws ofthe state; 

3. 	 Said position charges this employee with the prevention and detection of crime; 

4. 	 Said position gives this employee the full power of arrest; and 

5. 	 Said position is assigned to a designated police or sheriff's department. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this governing body hereby requests that the named employee be accepted as 

a member ofthe Public Employees Police and Fire Plan effective the date of this employee's initial Police and Fire Plan 

salary deduction by the governmental subdivision. 

Board 	 Date:_________ 

Date:_________ 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
COUNTY OF PINE 

I, ,clerk of the Pine County Board of Commissioners, do hereby certifY that this is a true and 
correct transcript of the resolution that was adopted at a meeting held on the __ day ; 
the original of which is on file in this office. I further certifY that members voted in favor of this resolution and that 

members were present and voting. 

Date:.________ 



PINS: COUNTY 
MiHNlC80'J' A 

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 

Date of Meeting: November 15th, 2016 

[{] County Board 
III Consent Agenda 
D Regu]ar Agenda sminsD lomlnsO 15minsD OtherO 

o Personnel Committee 


D Other _____ 


Agenda Item: Authorization for Probation Director to Attend AMC Conference 

Department: _P_r_o_b_a_ti_o_n_______________
"D~"""'byTtoII)'f_

Terry Fawce",=~~--tf 
Department Head signature 

Background information on Item: 
Probation Director Terry Fawcett serves as the AMC Rep to MACPO and as such, is requesting 
to attend the AMC Annual Conference in Minneapolis. The Minnesota Association of County 
Probation Officers will pay for Mr. Fawcett's conference fee and lodging. 

Action Requested: 

Approval of Probation Director to attend AMC Annual conference 

Financial Impact: 

Mileage at 140 miles round trip @ 0.54 per mile = $75.60 
Meals provided by the conference 



AGENDA REQUEST FORM 

Date of Meeting: November 15.2016 

[i] County Board 
o Consent Agenda 
o RegnlarAgenda SminU tDmlnsO IsmlnsO Otherll'l 

o Personnel Committee 

o Other _____ 

Background information on Item: 

Reconvene County Ditch #7 Partial Abandonment Hearing. 

Action Requested: 

Finaneial Impact: 



STATE OF MINNESOTA 

PINE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


DRAINAGE AUTHORITY FOR PINE COUNTY DITCH #7 


The Matter of the Petition of ) 
Harley Investment Company ) Findings and Order for Partial 
for the Partial Abandonment of ) Abandonment of Pine County Ditch #7 
Pine County Ditch #7 ) 

The Pine County Board of Commissioners, Drainage Authority for Pine County Ditch #7, held 
its public hearing, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes section 103 E. 806, on September 20, 2016, at 
the Pine County Courthouse in Pine City, Minnesota. The purpose for the public hearing was to 
consider and take public testimony regarding a petition to partially abandon Pine County Ditch 
#7. The Drainage Authority continued the public hearing to October 18, 2016, so that additional 
information could be gathered regarding the ditch and the petition for partial abandonment. The 
Drainage Authority again continued the public hearing to November 15,2016, so that additional 
information from the petitioner could be gathered. Based upon the record before it, the 
comments of those present at the public hearing and standards set forth in section 1 03E.806, the 
Drainage Authority makes the following: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. 	 On or about July 29, 2016, the Pine County Auditor received a petition for the partial 
abandonment ofPine County Ditch #7 from Harley Investment Company. The proposed 
partial abandonment is part of a wetlands restoration plan by Polymet Mining on the 
property. 

2. 	 The Pine County Auditor and County Engineer reviewed the petition and determined it 
was sufficient under Minnesota Statutes section 103E.806. 

3. 	 Ditch #7 was originally established on July 21, 1917, and it runs through Sections 17, 18, 
19, 20, 29, 31, 32 and 33, Brook Park Township, and Section 4 and 5, Pokegama 
Township. The outlet is a natural water course tributary to Pokegama Creek. 

4. 	 The petition called for the partial abandonment of Ditch #7. Specifically, the request is 
for the abandonment of3,325 feet ofditch starting at Pine County Coordinate 443975, 
159740 and ending at Pine County Coordinate 446017, 161096 (hereinafter "Ditch 
Portion"). 

5. 	 Ditch #7 contains two branches that combine on Harley Investment Company's north 
property line. Ditch #7 continues south to the center of the Harley Investment Company 
property and heads to an outlet at County Road 126. The Ditch Portion is a branch of 
Ditch #7 that begins in the southwestern part of the Harley Investment Company property 
and connects with the main ditch near the center of the property. 

1 



6. The Ditch Portion is entirely within the 510.96 acres owned by Harley Investment 
Company and has no public outlet. 

7. 	 At the hearing on September 20,2016, two property owners along Ditch #7 appeared, 
namely Kevin Hofstad and Daniel Blake. Mr. Hofstad owns property that shares most of 
the northern border with the Harley Investment Company. Mr. Blake owns property that 
shares a border with Mr. Hofstad's property north ofthe Harley Investment Company 
property. Ditch #7 travels through both of their properties. Collectively, they estimate 
that 20 percent of Ditch #7 is contained within their property. Both parties stated that 
they attended the hearing to gather information about how abandoning the Ditch Portion 
would affect their properties. Both properties expressed concern that the partial 
abandonment may increase the amount of water on their properties and make portions of 
their properties inaccessible. The parties noted that they have observed more standing 
water on their properties in recent years because of Ditch #7. Both parties asked that 
County Engineer Mark LeBrun make an inspection ofDitch #7. 

8. 	 On October 8, 2016, County Engineer LeBrun provided a report summarizing his 
research into the history of Ditch #7 and a site visit. Mr. LeBrun concluded that the 
Ditch Portion met the threshold for partial abandonment. He noted that the Ditch Portion 
had some benefit to the Harley Investment Company property, but had minimal benefit to 
the rest of the properties along Ditch #7. Mr. LeBrun stated that the benefiting properties 
north of the Harley Investment Company will continue to drain through the main portion 
of Ditch #7 which travels south and east through the property. Further, Mr. LeBrun 
stated that removing the beaver dams, vegetative/sediment blockages, and a weir in the 
main ditch will improve the flow ofDitch #7. The improved flow should alleviate 
flooding concerns for the properties north of the Harley Investment Company. 

9. 	 On October 18, 2016, the Pine County Board ofCommissioners reconvened for the 
public hearing. County Engineer LeBrun presented his findings. Mr. LeBrun concluded 
that abandoning the Ditch Portion would not serve a substantial useful purpose as part of 
the drainage system to any property remaining in the system and is not of a substantial 
public benefit and utility. Mr. Blake was present and again expressed some concern over 
an increase in water on his property. Representatives of Polymet Mining were in 
attendance and stated that they would pay for the removal of the weir. They also 
requested that the hearing be further continued to provide additional information about 
the partial abandonment ofDitch #7. 

10. On November 8, 2016, Barr Engineering Company submitted a report detailing 
hydrologic modeling done to determine whether the abandonment of the Ditch Portion or 
the proposed wetland restoration would impact other properties along Ditch #7. The 
surface water computing models and calculations used by Barr Engineering demonstrated 
that peak water levels from the abandonment of the Ditch Portion would decrease or 
remain the same outside of the wetland restoration site. The report concluded that the 
abandonment of the Ditch Portion would have no negative impact to properties outside of 
the wetland restoration site. 

2 



11. On November 15,2016, the Pine County Board of Commissioners reconvened for the 
public hearing. Representatives from Polymet Mining and Barr Engineering answered 
questions about proposed partial abandonment. The public hearing was then closed. 

LEGAL STANDARD 

1. 	 Section 103E.806 states that the drainage authority shall make findings and direct, by 
order, the partial abandonment of the drainage system "if the drainage authority 
determines that part of the drainage system does not serve a substantial useful purpose as 
part of the drainage system to any property remaining in the system and is not of a 
substantial public benefit and utility." 

2. 	 The word "substantial" means that the benefit and purpose to any property must be 
"significantly great" or "considerable in quantity." (see Merriam-Webster Dictionary). 

ORDER 

The Pine County Board ofCommissioners, Drainage Authority for Pine County Ditch #7, 
determines that the Ditch Portion does not serve a substantial useful purpose as part of the 
drainage system to any property remaining in the system and is not of a substantial public benefit 
and utility. Therefore, the Drainage Authority determines that per Minnesota Statutes section 
I03E.806 the Ditch Portion be abandoned. 

PINE COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS 

Curtis H. Rossow, Chairperson 
Pine County Board of Commissioners 

Certification 

The foregoing findings and order were adopted by the Pine County Board of Commissioners at 
the November 15, 2016 hearing on the petition for the partial abandonment of Ditch #7. 

David J. Minke 
Pine County Administrator 

3 



resourceful. naturally. BARR 
engineering and environmental consultants 

November 8, 2016 

Mr. Mark LeBrun 
Pine County 
405 Airport Road Northeast 
Pine City, MN 55063 

Re: Harley Investment Company Partial Abandonment - County Ditch #7 

Dear Mr. LeBrun: 

A Petition for Partial Abandonment of Portions of Pine County Ditch #7 (Petition) was formally submitted 
by Harley Investment Company (Harley), on behalf of Poly Met Mining, Inc. (PolyMet) on August 17, 2016 
for the purposes of a wetland mitigation project. Although our analysis and planning to that point gave us 
confidence that the proposed ditch abandonment and wetland mitigation project would not have adverse 
effects on neighboring properties, given the questions that were raised by the public at the subsequent 
Board meeting, we conducted further hydrologic modeling to determine whether or not the proposed 
partial ditch abandonment and the planned wetland restoration would impact properties within the 
County Ditch #7 watershed and adjacent watersheds. On behalf of PolyMet, attached is a report 
describing the hydrologic modeling and results. We are simultaneously submitting this letter and report 
to Cathy Clemmer and Debbie Gray and requesting that this letter and report be entered as part of the 
record and distributed in the Board packet for the coming meeting. 

This report shows that the proposed partial abandonment of County Ditch #7 will have no impact on any 
properties within the watershed except the Harley property. Therefore, the County Ditch #7 lateral serves 
no substantial useful purpose as part of the drainage system to any property remaining in the system and 
is not of substantial public benefit or utility. 

In addition, the report also shows that the planned wetland restoration will not result in any appreciable 
increase in flood levels on any properties within the watersheds associated with the Harley property, and 
in most cases will reduce flood levels in subwatersheds surrounding the Harley property. 

Should you have any questions regarding this report, please contact me at 952-832-2764 or Kevin Pylka at 
218-471-2162. 

Sincerely, 

Mark Jacobson 
Vice President, Senior Environmental Scientist 

c: 	 Cathy Clemmer 
Debbie Gray 
Kevin Pylka 

Borr Engineering Co. 4300 MarketPointe Drive. Suite 200. Minneapolis. MN 55435 952.832.2600 www.barr.com 

http:www.barr.com


Wetland Restoration Hydrology Model 

County Ditch 7 Partial Ditch Abandonment - Pine County 

Prepared for 
PolyMet Mining, Inc. 

November 8,2016 



Wetland Restoration Hydrology Model 

County Ditch 7 Partial Ditch Abandonment - Pine County 

Prepared for 

Poly Met Mining, Inc. 


November 8, 2016 



Wetland Restoration Hydrology Model 


County Ditch 7 Partial Ditch Abandonment - Pine County 


November 8, 2016 


Contents 

1.0 Executive Summary ... ..... .... .... .... ..... ......... ................... ..... .... ...... ... .... ...... ... ........... .. ... .......... .... .......... ....... ........ ....... ... ........ 1 


1.1 Purpose and Objectives ....... .... .. .... ...... .. ....... ......... ....... ............ .... .............................. .... .. ....... ..... ................. ... ....... .. .. 1 


1.2 Hydrologic/Hydraulic Model ........... ................. .............. .. ........... .. ..... ... ...... ........ .. ....... ........... ... .. ........ ... .......... ..... .... 1 


1.3 Results ........ .................. ....... ............... ............ ..... ........... .. ... ............. ... ............ .... ... .. ...... .. .................. ... ..... .... ....... ... ...... ..... 2 


1.3.1 Partial Ditch Abandonment ..................................... ........ .. .... .. .............. ........... ......... .. .... ... .. ........................... ... ... 2 


1.3.2 Wetland Restoration ............ .. ................... .......... ........ ......... .. .... ... ....... ... ............... ... ... ......... ......... ............ .. ........ .... 2 


2.0 Introduction ... .................. ... ................ ............... .. .. .. .... .. ................... .. ....................... .. .......... ................ ... ..... ..... ... .............. .. 4 


3.0 Modeled Watershed Characteristics .... ... ... ..... ......... .. .............. .... ... .......... .... ............ .... ............. .... .... .. ..... ... ........ ..... ... 5 


3.1 Hydrology Modeling Configurations ...................... ......... ......... .. .. .. ............................... .. .. .. ............................ .... .. .5 


3.1.1 Partial Ditch Abandonment Effects .. ................ .............. ...... ..... .. .... .... .................... .. .. ........................ ...... .........6 


3.1.1.1 Partial Ditch Abandonment Existing Conditions .. ...... .. .... .... .. .......................................... .... .. .. ...........6 


3.1.1.2 Partial Ditch Abandonment Proposed Conditions .......... .... .... ... .... .................. ...... ...... ..... ... .............. 6 


3.1.2 Proposed Wetland Restoration Effects .................... .. .............. .. ........... ........... ........ ....... .. ......................... ....... 6 


3.1.2.1 Wetland Restoration Existing Conditions ........ ........ .. ............ .. .. ...... ....... .......... .. ............. .. .. ...... ......... ...6 


3.1.2.2 Wetland Restoration Proposed Conditions .................................. ... ................. .. .......................... ........ 6 


3.1.3 Wetland Restoration Outlet Configuration ...... .................................. ............ .. .. .. .. .... .. ...... ....... .. .. ........ .......... 7 


4.0 Methodology.. ... ..... .... .. ..... .... .. ... .. .................. .. ....... ..... .. ............. .. ....... ............. ..... .............................. .. .. .. ...... .... ... .............. 8 


4.1 Precipitation .............................................. ... .... ............ .. .... ........ .. .... .. ... ............ ......... ....... .... ......... ............. ...... .... ............8 


4.2 Watershed Characteristics .... .............................. .. .. ...................... ........... ..................................... .................... ..... .. ... .8 


4.3 Hydrologic Parameters ............ ... .................... ........... .... ........... ... .. ... .. ...... .... ................... ............ ...... ......... ...... ............9 


4.4 Hydraulic Parameters ...................... ... ....... .. ... ........... ..... .. ..... .... .. .. .. .... .. .. ......................................... .................... .. .....12 


5.0 
 Modeling Results .. ....................... ...... .................. .. ......... ...... ...... .. ... ... ... ...... .......... ..... .. ......................... .................. ..........14 


5.1 
 Partial Ditch Abandonment .... ... ... ...... ... .............. .. ... ... ............. .. ...... ... ............ ................ .... ...... ... ... .........................14 


Proposed Wetland Restoration ........... ................. ..... ................. ... ....... ........ ... .. ..... ....... ........ ................. ... .... .. ........16
5.2 

5.2.1 North of the Property ... .. ... .... ... .. ... .. ...... .. ........... .... ...... .. .............. ....... .... ........ ......................................................16 


5.2.2 West of the Property ...... .... ... .. ......... ..... ...................... .............. ........... .. .. .. ........ ........ ............ ... .. ................... ........16 




5.2.3 East of the Property .... ................................ .. .... .. ............................. ... ..... .. .............................................................17 


5.2.4 South of the Property ....................................... ..... .... ........ ... ...................................... .. ... ......................................17 


5.3 Proposed Wetland Restoration Outlet .............. .... .......... ... .... .... ....... ............................................................. ...... 19 


6.0 References ............................................................... .. ... ..... ... .. ..... .. .... .............. ... .. .... ............. .. .............. .......... ..... ..... ...........20 




List of Tables 

Table 4-1 Return Frequency and Rainfall Depths 

Table 4-2 Runoff Parameters for National Land Cover Database (NLCD) Classifications 

Table 4-3 Existing Conditions Watershed Hydrologic Parameters 

Table 4-4 Proposed Conditions Watershed Hydrologic Parameters 

Table 5-1 Simulated Peak Water Surface Elevations and Changes Modeled for Existing Conditions 

and Partial Ditch Abandonment Scenarios 

Table 5-2 Simulated Peak Water Surface Elevations and Changes Modeled for Existing Conditions 

and Wetland Restoration Scenarios 

List of Figures 

Figure 1 Property Location 

Figure 2 Existing Conditions Modeling 

Figure 3 Proposed Conditions Modeling - Ditch Abandonment 

Figure 4 Proposed Conditions Modeling - Wetland Restoration 

Figure 5 lOO-year Flooding Extent - Existing Conditions 

Figure 6 lOO-year Flooding Extent - Ditch Abandonment Conditions 

Figure 7 lOO-year Flooding Extent - Existing vs. Abandonment Conditions 

Figure 8 lOO-year Flooding Extent - Proposed Wetland Restoration Conditions 

Figure 9 lOO-year Flooding Extent - Existing vs. Wetland Restoration 

iii 



1.0 Executive Summary 

Poly Met Mining, Inc. (PolyMet) is planning to restore wetlands within an approximately 524.5 acre 

property (Property) located in Township 39 North, Range 22 West, Section 22, Pine County, Minnesota 

(Figure 1). The purpose of the proposed wetland restoration project is to provide compensatory wetland 

mitigation for proposed unavoidable wetland impacts of the PolyMet NorthMet Project. The portion of 

the Property that will be used for the wetland restoration project is referred to in this report as the 

Restoration Site. As part of the wetland restoration planning, PolyMet, on behalf of the current property 

owner, has petitioned the Pine County Drainage Authority to partially abandon Pine County Ditch #7 

(CD7). PolyMet seeks the abandonment of a 3,325 ft portion of a lateral (Lateral) that is located within the 

Restoration Site, but is separate from the main stem of CD7 (Figure 2). 

1.1 Purpose and Objectives 
The purpose of this study is to evaluate the hydrologic effects of the proposed partial CD7 ditch 

abandonment and the potential for hydrologic effects of the proposed wetland restoration on adjacent 

properties within the modeled subwatersheds. This report summarizes the hydrologic/hydraulic model of 

the CD7 watershed and adjacent watersheds and summarizes the results of modeling 24-hour duration 

rainfall depths for the corresponding 2-year, lO-year, and lOO-year recurrence events. 

The hydrology modeling documented in this report was conducted to meet several objectives: 

L 	 To evaluate the effects of abandoning a portion of CD7 as proposed 

2. 	 To evaluate potential hydrologic effects of the proposed wetland restoration activities on other 

properties within the modeled subwatersheds 

3. 	 To determine the appropriate outlet configuration for the wetland restoration to prevent flooding 

of other properties to the south 

1.2 Hydrologic/Hydraulic Model 
The United States Environmental Protection Agency's Storm Water Management Model (SWMM), with a 

graphical interface provided by XP Software (XP-SWMM) was the surface water computer modeling 

package used for this study. XP-SWMM uses rainfall and watershed information to generate runoff that is 

routed simultaneously through pipe and overland flow networks. Simultaneous routing means that flow in 

each component in the system is modeled for each time increment simultaneously. The model then 

moves on to the next time increment, and so on. Simultaneous routing allows the model to account for 

channelized flow, flow in pipes, and flow detained in ponding areas, all of which occur in the modeled 

subwatersheds. 



1.3 Results 

1.3.1 Partial Ditch Abandonment 

Removal of the 3,325 ft portion of the Lateral located within the Restoration Site, in isolation from any 

other future activities on the Property, will have no negative impact on any other properties within the 

modeled subwatersheds (Figure 7). The simulation results for the existing conditions and partial ditch 

abandonment scenario (Table 5-1) show that peak water levels decrease or remain the same in all 

subwatersheds located outside of the Restoration Site except subwatershed C07 -02, which includes the 

eastern portion of the Restoration Site. Peak water levels modeled in subwatersheds located north of the 

Property remained the same or decreased by up to 0.7 ft with the partial ditch abandonment compared to 

existing conditions. Peak water levels modeled in subwatersheds located west of the Property decreased 

by 0.1 ft to 0.6 ft with the partial ditch abandonment compared to existing conditions. The difference in 

flooding conditions for a 100-year precipitation event under existing conditions compared to the partial 

ditch abandonment conditions are shown on Figure 7. 

All modeled peak water level increases are limited to subwatersheds which lie predominantly on the 

Restoration Site, as indicated by the suffix, "-s" with the exception of the subwatershed adjacent to the 

outlet (subwatershed C07-02), which shows a 0.1 ft (1.2 inch) increase for the 100-year event (Table 5-1). 

The peak water level increase modeled in subwatershed C07-02 is equivalent to the accuracy of the 

model and small enough that it would be difficult to measure on the land surface due to the natural 

undulations of the terrain, and therefore, would have no impact on adjacent properties. 

The reasons that the proposed partial ditch abandonment has no impact or a reduced flooding effect on 

upstream or adjacent properties are threefold: 

• 	 The partial ditch abandonment will lower the rate of runoff to C07 (by removing channelized 

runoff) from about 195 acres of land (subwatersheds C07-08-s, MCR-13-s through MCR-18-s), so 

the C07 channel has more capacity to pass flows, 

• 	 The main stem of C07 is not proposed to be altered, and 

• 	 The location of the abandoned ditch is over one-half mile downstream of and 4 ft lower than 

upstream properties. 

1.3.2 Wetland Restoration 

Removal of the 3,325 ft portion of the Lateral located within the Restoration Site, combined with filling by 

three feet approximately one-quarter mile of private ditch along the western border of the site, lowering 

the dike in the northwest corner of the Restoration Site, raising the southern portion of the dike on the 

western side of the Restoration Site, and wetland restoration of the Restoration Site (Figure 4), will have 

no negative impact on properties within the modeled subwatersheds. The proposed wetland restoration 

will eliminate subsurface drainage and channelized runoff from the Restoration Site, thereby holding 

water on the land, allowing it to drain out slowly over a long period of time. The simulation results 

comparing the proposed wetland restoration conditions to existing conditions (Table 5-2) show no 

increase in peak water levels outside of the Property for the 100-year event and no appreciable increase in 

2 



peak water levels for the more frequent storm events (i .e., increased peak water levels occur in frequent 

events at low elevations that will largely remain within the ditch banks and due to the small changes, 

would be difficult to accurately measure due to the natural undulations of the terrain). All modeled peak 

water level increases for the IOO-year storm event are contained within the Property (Figure 9). 

There are five primary reasons why adjacent properties would not be affected by the proposed wetland 

restoration: 

• 	 The rate of runoff from the Restoration Site to CD7 will be lowered by eliminating channelized 

runoff so the CD7 channel has more capacity to pass flows 

• 	 The water storage capacity within the Restoration Site is increased by the proposed wetland 

restoration 

• 	 The main stem CD7 channel is not proposed to be altered 

• 	 The current dike along the north and west sides of the property will be lowered, allowing a 

broader flow path for floodwaters to move downstream 

• 	 The western private ditch will only be filled approximately three feet, allowing flood flows to pass 

through 

3 



2.0 In"troduction 

PolyMet is planning to restore wetlands within a 524.5 acre Property (determined based on a survey by a 

registered land surveyor) located in Township 39 North, Range 22 West, Section 22, Pine County, 

Minnesota (Figure 1). The purpose of the proposed wetland restoration project is to provide 

compensatory wetland mitigation for proposed unavoidable wetland impacts of the PolyMet NorthMet 

Project. As part of the wetland restoration planning, PolyMet, on behalf of the current property owner, has 

petitioned the Pine County Drainage Authority to partially abandon CD7 by removing a portion of the 

Lateral from the public drainage system. The portion to be abandoned consists of a 3.325 ft portion of 

the Lateral located within the Restoration Site (Figure 2). 

The purpose of this study is to evaluate the hydrologic effects of the proposed partial CD7 ditch 

abandonment and the hydrologic effects of the proposed wetland restoration on properties within the 

modeled subwatersheds. This report summarizes the hydrologic/hydraulic model of the CD7 watershed 

and adjacent watersheds and summarizes the results of modeling 24-hour duration rainfall depths for the 

corresponding 2-year, lO-year, and lOO-year recurrence events. 

4 



3.0 Modeled Watershed Characteristics 

The hydrologic modeling area lies in the lower portion of the Snake River major watershed and the 

southwestern portion of Pine County (Figure 1). The proposed Restoration Site is located in the 

downstream portion of the CD7 watershed with a small portion (subwatershed MCR-03-s) of the 

Restoration Site (21 ac) draining to Mud Creek through private ditches. The total modeled watershed area 

is approximately 7,900 acres (Figures 2-4). County Ditch 7, according to Pine County records, is composed 

of three tributaries; the main stem, the northwest tributary, and the Lateral, which includes a 3,325 ft 

portion within the Restoration Site (Figure 2).The main stem of CD7 located upstream of the Property is 

approximately 3 miles long dropping about 25 ft in elevation with a slope of about 0.16 percent. The 

remaining 1.4 miles of the CD7 main stem through the Property and to the outlet at the tributary to 

Pokegama Creek (Figure 2) drops approximately 4 ft in elevation at a slope of about 0.05 percent. The 

National Wetland Inventory (NWI) indicates that approximately 37 percent of the modeled subwatersheds 

are composed of wetlands. 

The Restoration Site has been historically used for sod and row crop production. In order to effectively 

conduct agricultural operations on the Restoration Site, over nine miles of private ditches were 

constructed within the Restoration Site. Currently, the main stem of CD7 flows southward towards the 

Restoration Site where low flows are diverted westerly through the northwest tributary of CD7 and then 

southerly through a private ditch, eventually discharging to Mud Creek downstream of Highway 107. 

There is currently a weir structure on the main stem of CD7 at the north end of the Restoration Site that 

allows flow to continue southward through the Restoration Site during higher flows. The main stem of 

CD7 through the Restoration Site is a functioning ditch that flows south and east under the railroad tracks, 

eventually discharging to a natural watercourse tributary to Pokegama Creek, which serves as the outlet 

for CD7. The 3,325 ft portion of the Lateral that is proposed to be abandoned is currently bisected into 

two distinct channels, one discharging west through private ditches towards Mud Creek and the other 

discharging east towards Pokegama Creek (Figures 2 and 5). 

3.1 Hydrology Modeling Configurations 
The hydrology modeling documented in this report was conducted to meet several objectives: 

• To evaluate the effects of abandoning a portion of CD7 as proposed 

• To evaluate potential hydrologic effects of the proposed wetland restoration activities on other 

properties within the modeled subwatersheds 

• To determine the appropriate outlet configuration for the wetland restoration to prevent flooding 

of other properties to the south 

Each of these objectives and the related modeling configurations developed for each are described in 

more detail below. 

5 



3.1.1 Partial Ditch Abandonment Effects 

To evaluate the hydrologic effects of abandoning and physically eliminating the 3,325 ft portion of the 

Lateral within the Restoration Site, two hydrologic model configurations were developed. 

3.1.1.1 Partial Ditch Abandonment Existing Conditions 

The existing conditions model for evaluating the effects of the partial ditch abandonment assumes that 

the weir structure currently present within CD7 at the north end of the Restoration Site is removed and 

that the main stem of CD7 is an open channel entering the Restoration Site. The Lateral is modeled based 

on its current configuration; with the west segment discharging to the west into a private ditch through a 

48-inch culvert and the eastern segment discharging to the east into the main stem of CD7 (Figures 2 and 
5). 

3.1.1.2 Partial Ditch Abandonment Proposed Conditions 

To evaluate the effects of the partial ditch abandonment, the existing conditions model described in 

Section 3.1.1.1 was modified to eliminate the 3,325 ft portion of the Lateral within the Restoration Site, 

thereby allowing runoff from those subwatersheds to flow overland to the main stem of CD7, discharging 

from the eastern side of the Property (Figure 3). 

3.1.2 Proposed Wetland Restoration Effects 

To evaluate the effects of the proposed wetland restoration plan on properties within the modeled 

subwatersheds, two hydrologic model configurations were developed. 

3.1.2.1 Wetland Restoration Existing Conditions 

The existing conditions model for evaluating the effects of the proposed wetland restoration activities 

characterizes the hydrologic system the same as described in Section 3.1.1.1 (Figure 2). 

3.1.2.2 Wetland Restoration Proposed Conditions 

To evaluate effects of the proposed wetland restoration activities on adjacent properties, the existing 

conditions model described in Section 3.1.1.1 was modified to depict conditions proposed in the wetland 

restoration plans (Figure 4). The wetland restoration plans include the elimination of over 9 miles of 

private ditches within the Restoration Site along with 21 culverts located within those ditches. Under the 

proposed wetland restoration plans, the main stem of CD7 will enter the Restoration Site as an open 

channel, will flow south and east through the property as an open channel, and will discharge to the 

tributary to Pokegama Creek as intended. A total of two culverts that are currently within the main stem of 

CD7 on the Restoration Site will be removed and the open channel will be restored. The northwest 

tributary of CD7 will flow south to the northwest portion of the Restoration Site, then predominantly flow 

east entering the main stem of CD7 at the north edge of the Restoration Site. During high water 

conditions, the northwest tributary will be allowed to overflow south along the west side of the 

Restoration Site through the shallow private ditch that will remain after filling approximately one-quarter 

mile of the private west ditch by about three feet. The adjacent dike (along the west side of the 

Restoration Site in the northwest corner) will be lowered from approximately elevation 991 ft above mean 

6 



sea level (MSL) to about 988 ft MSL (Figure 8). The remaining one-half mile of dike along the west side of 

the Property will be raised to elevation 991 ft MSL to prevent unprotected discharge from the Property 

(Figure 4).The dike on the north edge of the Property, adjacent to the northwest tributary of CD7 will be 

lowered from about elevation 991 ft MSL to 988 ft MSL. 

Nearly all runoff generated from within the Restoration Site or entering the Restoration Site from the 

south will discharge to the main stem of CD7. Runoff from the south half of the Restoration Site will enter 

the main stem of CD7 through a protected, riprap spillway. Runoff from the north half of the Restoration 

Site will discharge to the main stem of CD7 via sheetflow. Runoff generated from the southwestern 32 

acres of the Restoration Site (subwatershed MCR-03-s) will discharge into a private ditch on the west side 

as is currently the case, but primarily via sheetflow instead of concentrated ditch flow. The proposed 

wetland restoration plans include restoring saturated soil conditions with limited ponding of water on the 

land surface of the Restoration Site except during flooding events. The planned wetland communities 

include shrub swamps and sedge/wet meadow, which are expected to have saturation to the ground 

surface most of the time. 

3.1.3 Wetland Restoration Outlet Configuration 

As part of the hydrologic modeling to evaluate the effects of the proposed wetland restoration activities, 

the configuration of a protected riprap outlet was designed to ensure that neither Sod Road nor adjacent 

properties to the south would be affected and to ensure that the dike along the west side of the 

Restoration Site would not be overtopped. 

7 



4.0 Methodology 

The United States Environmental Protection Agency's Storm Water Management Model (SWMM), with a 

graphical interface provided by XP Software (XP-SWMM) was the surface water computer modeling 

package used for this study. XP-SWMM uses rainfall and watershed information to generate runoff that is 

routed simultaneously through pipe and overland flow networks. Simultaneous routing means that flow in 

each component in the system is modeled for each time increment simultaneously. The model then 

moves on to the next time increment, and so on . Simultaneous routing allows the model to account for 

channelized flow, flow in pipes, and flow detained in ponding areas, all of which occur in the modeled 

su bwatersheds. 

XP-SWMM, version 2014, Service Pack 1 was used to model the CD7 watershed, including the Restoration 

Site and affected adjacent watersheds. Data were input regarding (1) synthetic event precipitation; (2) 

subwatershed areas; and (3) hydrologic and hydraulic parameters. 

4.1 Precipitation 
Precipitation totals for the 24-hour duration synthetic events (Table 4-1) were obtained from the National 

Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (Perica et aI., 2013). The MSE 3 MN rainfall distribution was used 

to create the hyetograph for the synthetic events. The Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) 

developed the MSE 3 MN rainfall distribution for use with Atlas 14 precipitation depths, and the 

Minnesota NRCS currently uses the MSE 3 MN rainfall distribution for all rural NRCS hydrology 

applications within Minnesota (Natural Resources Conservation Service, 2015). 

Table 4-1 Return Frequency and Rainfall Depths 

Return Frequency Rainfall Depth (inches) 

2-Year 2.71 

lO-Year 3.97 

lOO-Year 6.36 

4.2 Watershed Characteristics 
Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) light detection and ranging (LiDAR) topography 

data, topographic field survey data, and aerial imagery were used to divide the contributing watershed 

areas into 26 subwatersheds to evaluate existing conditions and partial ditch abandonment conditions 

(Figure 2) and 22 subwatersheds to evaluate proposed conditions (Figure 4). The subwatersheds were 

named according to the stream to which they drain: the prefix "Me was used for subwatersheds draining 

towards Mud Creek and the prefix CD7 was used for subwatersheds drained by CD7 to Pokegama Creek. 

The suffix "-s" was used to identify subwatersheds that lie predominantly within the Restoration Site. 

8 



4.3 Hydrologic Parameters 

Key hydrologic parameters in XP-SWMM include watershed area, directly connected impervious surface 

percentage, watershed slope, watershed width (a parameter used in XP-SWMM to estimate the shape of 

the runoff hydrograph), overland roughness, and depression storage. Subwatershed area was calculated 

using ArcGIS. Impervious surfaces within the modeled watershed are small in area, isolated and mostly 

confined to highway surfaces. Therefore, the percentage of directly connected impervious (DCI) was 

assumed to be zero for all subwatersheds. The average subwatershed slope was calculated using a slope 

grid that was based on a National Elevation dataset 30-meter digital elevation model. Watershed width 

was calculated by dividing the subwatershed area by the longest flowpath length for that subwatershed, 

according to methodology recommended in the XP-SWMM user's manual. 

The National Land Cover Database (NLCD) 2011 land cover data set (Homer et aI., 2015) was used to 

calculate weighted averages for overland roughness and depression storage for pervious surfaces by 

assigning published overland roughness and depression storage values to each land use classification . 

Depression storage, which includes the areas that must be filled with water prior to generating runoff, was 

based on guidance found in the User's Guide to SWMM5 (James et aI., 2010). Overland roughness affects 

the velocity of unchannelized water moving overland. Values for overland roughness were based on 

values reported in Kalyanapu et al (2009), except for the value for the "cultivated crops" land use, which 

was taken from Johnson et al (1996). The overland roughness and depression storage values for each land 

use classification are shown in Table 4-2. 

9 



Table 4-2 Runoff Parameters for National Land Cover Database (NLCD) Classifications 

NLCD Land Use Classification 
Overland Flow 

Roughness : 
Depression Storage 

(inches) 

Developed, Open Space 

Developed, Low Intensity 

Developed, Medium Intensity 

Developed, High Intensity 

0.0404 

0.0678 

0.0678 

0.0404 

0.15 

0.132 

0.105 

0.078 

Barren Land 0.0113 0.075 

Deciduous Forest 0.36 0.3 

Evergreen Forest 0.32 0.3 

Mixed Forest 0.4 0.3 

Shrub/Scrub 0.4 0.3 

Herbaceous 0.368 0.2 

Hay/Pastu re 0.325 0.2 

Woody Wetlands 0.086 0.3 

Emergent Herbaceous Wetlands 0.1825 0.3 

Cultivated Crops 0.17 0.2 

Infiltration characteristics of the soils underlying the site and the contributing area also affect the runoff 

depth. The SSURGO soil sUNey has not yet been completed for Pine County, so soil maps from a 1926 

sUNey were reviewed to determine the most common soil types and corresponding hydrologic soil group 

(HSG) classes within the Restoration Site and the contributing area. The most common HSG classes found 

were A/D, which acts as an A soil with a high infiltration rate when dry and a D soil with a low infiltration 

when saturated, and C/D, which acts as a C soil with a moderate infiltration rate when dry and a D soil 

when saturated. Because the A/D soils were mainly Peat, which is characterized by a high water table, 

these soils were assumed to be nearly saturated under typical conditions. Therefore a C/D HSG 

classification was assumed for all soils within the Restoration Site and the contributing area. This is a 

conseNative assumption, i.e. it results in predicting more runoff than actually occurs, and therefore worse 

flooding conditions than would be expected. 

The Horton method was used to model infiltration in XP-SWMM. The parameters for the Horton method 

include maximum infiltration rate, minimum infiltration rate, and decay rate of infiltration. For C/D soils, 

these parameters were assumed to be 2 inches per hour, 0.03 inches per hour, and 0.00115 per second, 

respectively, according to guidance in the XP-SWMM user's manual. 

Hydrologic parameters for the existing subwatersheds are shown in Table 4-3. Hydrologic parameters for 

the proposed subwatersheds are shown in Table 4-4. 

10 



Table 4-3 Existing Conditions Watershed Hydrologic Parameters 

J ~ 

Subwatershed Overland Flow Depression 
Name ; Area (ac) " Width (ft) " Slope (ft/ft) Roughness Storage (in) 

C07-02 833.3 2564 0.011 0.233 0.263 

C07-03-s 193.1 1538 0.006 0.267 0.237 

C07-04 816.7 2084 0.012 0.221 0.282 
1-

C07-05 194.6 1830 0.018 0.233 0.24 

C07-06 2505.9 5908 0.016 0.249 0.276 

C07-07 25 783 0.011 0.19 0.292 

C07-08-s 59.1 932 0.009 0.32 0.21 

MCR-03-s 68.5 947 0.013 0.221 0.234 

MCR-04 96.5 854 0.013 0.215 0.284 

MCR-05 319.6 2554 0.008 0.216 0.289 

MCR-06 1058.2 4207 0.015 0.271 0.255 

MCR-07 272.4 1826 0.009 0.258 0.283 

MCR-08 98.5 1460 0.004 0.223 0.26 

MCR-09 430 3619 0.017 0.245 0.266-
MCR-10 241.2 2356 0.014 0.265 0 .255 

MCR-ll 179.5 1793 0.012 0.216 0.285 

MCR-12 35.5 752 0.018 0.228 0.278 

MCR-13-s 3 96 0.004 0.154 0.174 

MCR-14-s 15.8 626 0.007 0.312 0.209 

MCR-15-s 56.8 944 0.011 0.225 0.206 

MCR-16 27 .3 767 0.014 0.246 0.297 

MCR-17 23.9 679 0.017 0.29 0.275 

MCR-18-s 8.7 260 0.006 0.32 0.235 

MCR-19-s 33 824 0.003 0.306 0.207 

MCR-20-s 39.3 824 0.004 0.323 0.202 

MCR-22 273.3 2427 0.015 0.271 0.255 

11 




Table 4-4 Proposed Conditions Watershed Hydrologic Parameters 

Subwatershed Overland Flow Depression 
Name Area (ac) Width (ft) , Slope (ft/ft) Roughness Storage (in) 

C07-02 833.3 2564 0.011 0.233 0.263 

C07-03-s 248.7 1981 0.006 0.280 0.229 

C07-04 819.5 2091 0.012 0.220 0.282 

C07-05 194.6 1830 0.018 0.233 0.240 

C07-06 2505.9 5908 0.016 0.249 0.276 

C07-07 25 783 0.011 0.190 0.292 

C07-08-s 156.8 1835 0.009 0.281 0.210 

MCR-03-s 68.1 941 0.013 0.221 0.234 

MCR-04 45.7 905 0.013 0.171 0.291 

MCR-05 316.8 2532 0.008 0.217 0.289 
~ 

MCR-06 1058.2 4207 0.015 0.271 0.255 

MCR-07 272.4 1826 0.009 0.258 0.283 

MCR-08 98.5 1460 0.004 0.223 0.260 

MCR-09 430 3619 0.017 0.245 0.266 

MCR-10 241.2 2356 0.014 0.265 0.255 

MCR-ll 179.5 1793 0.012 0.216 0.285 

MCR-12 35.5 752 0.018 0.228 0.278 

MCR-13-s 3 96 0.004 0.154 0.174 
~ 

MCR-16 27.3 767 0.014 0.246 0.297 

MCR-17 23.9 679 0.017 0.290 0.275 

MCR-22 273.3 2427 0.015 0.268 0.277 

MCR-23 51.5 624 0.013 0.252 0.279 

4.4 Hydraulic Parameters 

Stream and drainage ditch cross-sections were created using ArcView© 10,3,1 Geographic Information 

System (GIS) software, a digital elevation model (OEM) created from MONR LiOAR data, and field surveyed 

topography. The most typical cross-section for a given reach was selected to represent that reach in the 

XP-SWMM model. Hydraulic parameters for culvert road crossing locations within and adjacent to the 

12 



Restoration Site were obtained from survey information. Hydraulic parameters for culvert road crossing 

locations that were not surveyed were estimated based on LiOAR data and aerial photography. 

Area-elevation (storage) curves for subwatersheds outside of the Restoration Site were calculated in 

ArcGIS using a OEM created from Pine County LiOAR data and within the Restoration Site using a OEM 

created from field surveyed topography. Overflow elevations for ponding areas were set based on the 

LiOAR data or survey data. The storage areas for existing conditions subwatersheds C07 -03-s, C07 -08-s, 

MCR-04, MCR-19-s, and MCR-20-s were almost entirely made up of ditch and stream channels. Additional 

pond storage was not explicitly modeled for these subwatersheds because XP-SWMM accounts for 

channel storage in the modeling of the channel cross-section. Within the affected subwatersheds, the 

channel cross-sections were extended laterally to ensure that the entire channel and overbank area was 

represented. Proposed conditions subwatersheds C07-03-s and MCR-23 were also modeled using 

channel storage alone. 

13 



5.0 Modeling Results 

The hydrologic models described in Section 3 were all run for the 24-hour duration, 2-year, 10-year, and 

100-year recurrence interval storm events. The primary result used to determine potential effects on other 

properties within the modeled subwatersheds was the peak water surface elevation. 

5.1 Partial Ditch Abandonment 

Removal of the 3,325 ft portion of the Lateral within the Restoration Site will have no impact on adjacent 

properties. The effect of the proposed partial ditch abandonment is to divert channelized runoff away 

from Mud Creek and towards Pokegama Creek, as intended. The diverted area includes 136 acres of land 

(subwatersheds MCR-13-s through MCR-18-s), of which 51 acres is located south of the Property 

(subwatersheds MCR16 and MCR-17). In addition, channelized runoff from 59 acres of the Restoration Site 

(subwatershed CD7 -03-s) would be converted predominantly to diffuse overland flow. Therefore, flood 

elevations would be reduced on adjacent lands located west of the Restoration Site in the Mud Creek 

subwatersheds MCR-04 and MCR-03-s by 0.1 ft to 0.6 ft (Table 5-1). 

The simulation results for the existing conditions and partial ditch abandonment scenarios (Table 5-1) 

show peak water levels remain the same or decrease by up to 0.7 ft within upstream subwatersheds C07

04, C07-05, C07-06, and MCR-05 through MCR-ll (Table 5-1). The modeled flooding extent for the 100

year event under existing conditions around the Restoration Site is shown on Figure 5 and similarly for the 

proposed partial ditch abandonment on Figure 6. The difference in flooding extent between existing 

conditions and proposed partial ditch abandonment conditions around the Restoration Site is shown on 

Figure 7. 

All modeled peak water level increases are limited to subwatersheds which lie predominantly on the 

Restoration Site, as indicated by the suffix, "-s" with the exception of the subwatershed adjacent to the 

outlet (subwatershed C07-02), which shows a 0.1 ft (1.2 inch) increase for the 100-year event (Table 5-1). 

The peak water level increase modeled in subwatershed CD7 -02 is equivalent to the accuracy of the 

model and small enough that it would be difficult to measure on the land surface due to the natural 

undulations of the terrain, and therefore, would have no impact. 

The reasons that the proposed partial ditch abandonment has no effect or a reduced flooding effect on 

upstream or adjacent properties are threefold: 

• The partial ditch abandonment will lower the rate of runoff to C07 (by removing channelized 

runoff) from about 195 acres of land (subwatersheds C07-08-s, MCR-13-s through MCR-18-s), so 

the CD7 channel has more capacity to pass flows, 

• The main stem of C07 is not proposed to be altered, and 

• The location of the abandoned ditch is over one-half mile downstream of and 4 ft lower than 

upstream properties. 

14 



Table 5-1 Simulated Peak Water Surface Elevations and Changes Modeled for Existing 
Conditions and Partial Ditch Abandonment Scenarios 

984.6 0.4 986.1 0.4 988.0 988.1 

988.0 -0.7 989.1 -0.1 990.1 990.1 

0.1 

0.0 

CD7-0S 1010.3 1010.3 0.0 1010.6 1010.6 0.0 1011.2 1011.2 0.0 

CD7-06 1014.7 1014.7 0.0 1016.6 1016.6 0.0 1018.1 1018.1 0.0 

CD7-07 983.5 983.5 0.0 984.0 984.0 0.0 984.7 984.7 0.0 

CD7-08-s 984.3 984.6 0.3 986.3 986.4 0.1 988.0 988.1 

MCR-03-s 985.0 984.4 -0.6 985.6 985.3 -0.3 986.9 986.6 -0.3 

MCR-04 986.2 985.7 -0.5 986.9 986.7 -0.2 987.9 987.8 

MCR-OS 988.7 988.1 -0.6 989.2 989.2 0.0 990.1 990.1 0.0 

MCR-06 999.6 999.6 0.0 1001.2 1001.2 0.0 1002.3 1002.3 0.0 

MCR-07 1007.6 1007.6 0.0 1009.4 1009.4 0.0 1010.2 1010.2 0.0 

MCR-08 1016.6 1016.6 0.0 1017.2 1017.2 0.0 1018.4 1018.4 0.0 

MCR-09 1003.4 1003.4 0.0 1003.7 1003.7 0.0 1004.3 1004.3 0.0 

MCR-10 1021.5 1021.5 0.0 1022.7 1022.7 0.0 1023.1 1023.1 

MCR-ll 1000.0 1000.0 0.0 1000.4 1000.4 0.0 1000.8 1000.8 0.0 

MCR-12 990.4 990.4 0.0 990.5 990.5 0.0 990.6 990.6 0.0 

MCR-13-s 989.3 989.3 0.0 989.6 989.6 0.0 990.1 990.1 0.0 

MCR-l4-s 987.3 987.3 0.0 987.4 987.4 0.0 988.1 988.2 0.1 

MCR-1S-s 986.1 986.1 0.0 987.6 987.3 -0.3 988.7 988.5 -0.2 

MeR-16 990.2 990.2 0.0 990.6 990.6 0.0 990.8 990.8 0.0 

MCR-17 991.8 991.8 0.0 992.0 992.0 0.0 992.2 992.2 0.0 

MCR-l8-s 985.7 986.1 0.4 986.4 986.7 0.3 988.2 988.2 0.0 

MCR-19-s 986.2 986.2 0.0 986.5 986.7 0.2 988.2 988.2 0.0 

MCR-20-s 987.2 987.1 -0.1 987.2 987.2 0.0 988.2 988.2 0.0 

MCR-22 998.7 998.7 0.0 999.7 999.7 0.0 1001.0 1001.0 0.0 

15 



5.2 Proposed Wetland Restoration 

Removal of the 3,325 ft portion of the Lateral located within the Restoration Site, combined with filling by 

about three feet approximately one-quarter mile of private ditch along the western border of the site, 

lowering the dike in the northwest corner of the Restoration Site, raising the southern portion of the dike 

on the western side of the Restoration Site, and wetland restoration on the Restoration Site (Figure 4); will 

have no impact on properties within the modeled subwatersheds. The proposed wetland restoration will 

eliminate subsurface drainage and channelized runoff from the Restoration Site, thereby holding water on 

the land, allowing it to drain out slowly over a long period of time. The simulation results comparing the 

wetland restoration to existing conditions (Table 5-2) show no increase in peak water levels outside of the 

Property for the 100-year event and no appreciable increase in peak water levels for the more frequent 

storm events. The increases would not be appreciable because the increase in peak water level would 

largely be confined within the ditch banks and small enough that it would be difficult to accurately 

measure on the land surface due to the natural undulations of the terrain. All modeled peak water level 

increases for the 100-year storm event are limited to the Property. 

5.2.1 North of the Property 

The results for subwatershed C07 -04, located immediately north of the Restoration Site, show a decrease 

in peak water levels for the 10-year and 100-year events and an increase in peak water level of 0.2 ft for 

the 2-year event (Table 5-2). However, the peak water level for the 2-year event is largely contained within 

the C07 ditch banks, so there would be no impact on land within the C07-04 subwatershed. 

The results for subwatershed MCR-05, located immediately northwest of the Restoration Site, show a 

decrease in peak water level of 0.7 ft for the lO-year event and a decrease of 0.6 ft for the 100-year event 

(Table 5-2). The peak water level in subwatershed MCR-05 is predicted to increase by 0.1 ft for the 2-year 

event, but that predicted water level rise is within the accuracy of the model and is small enough that it 

would be difficult to accurately measure due to the natural undulations of the terrain. Therefore, the 

proposed wetland restoration will have no impact on land within adjacent subwatershed MCR-05. 

Subwatershed C07-03-s is predominantly located within the Restoration Site, but approximately 38 acres 

of the subwatershed extend northward onto neighboring property. The modeled peak water levels in 

subwatershed C07-03-s decrease by 0.2 ft to 0.7 ft from existing conditions to the proposed wetland 

restoration conditions. All of the other subwatershedslocated farther upstream show no changes in peak 

water levels from existing conditions to the proposed wetland restoration conditions (Table 5-2 and 

Figure 3). 

5.2.2 West of the Property 

The adjacent properties located west of the Restoration Site generally show substantial reductions in peak 

water levels for all storm events (Table 5-2 and Figure 9), because the proposed wetland restoration plans 

to route runoff from nearly the entire Restoration Site through C07 as was originally intended instead of 

discharging to private ditches that drain to Mud Creek. Peak water levels for the 100-year event in 

adjacent subwatersheds MCR-03-s and MCR-23 show decreases of 0.6 ft to 0.8 ft from existing conditions 

16 



to the proposed wetland restoration and even greater reductions during the more frequent events (Table 

5-2). Under the proposed wetland restoration conditions, peak water levels within subwatershed MCR-04 

are predicted to increase by 0.6 ft to 1.3 ft, but are entirely confined to the Property (Table 5-2 and Figure 

9). 

5.2.3 East of the Property 

Subwatershed C07-02 and C07-07 are the only subwatersheds located east of the Property (Figure 4). 

Peak wa ter levels are predicted to rema in the same or decrease for all modeled storm events when 

compared to existing conditions (Table 5-2). Therefore, the proposed wetland restoration project will have 

no effect on properties located east of the Property. 

5.2.4 South of the Property 

Subwatersheds MCR-12, MCR-16, and MCR-17 are the only subwatersheds located south of the Property 

(Figure 4). Peak water levels are predicted to remain the same within those subwatersheds for all modeled 

storm events when compared to existing conditions (Table 5-2). Therefore, the proposed wetland 

restoration project will have no effect on properties located south of the Property. 

There are five primary reasons why adjacent properties would not be affected by the proposed wetland 

restoration: 

• 	 The rate of runoff from the Restoration Site to CD7 will be lowered by eliminating channelized 

runoff so the CD7 channel has more capacity to pass flows 

• 	 The water storage capacity within the Restoration Site is increased by the proposed wetland 

restoration 

• 	 The main stem C07 channel is not proposed to be altered 

• 	 The current dike along the north and west sides of the property will be lowered, allowing a 

broader flow path for floodwaters to move downstream 

• 	 The western private ditch will only be filled approximately three feet, allowing flood flows to pass 

through 

17 



Table 5-2 Simulated Peak Water Surface Elevations and Changes Modeled for Existing 
Conditions and Wetland Restoration Scenarios 

Peak Wat~r Surface EI~;;ati~nslt' Peak' Water Surla~e ' Elevations 
for 2-year, 24-hourEvent' :'; . for IO-year, 24... hour Event 

(ft) '. '~~d.;_\,'k- ~~~.~ .. ~._ .... ~ ~Jft) 

. Peak Water Surface Elevations 
for lOO-year, 24-hour Event 

(ft) 

Proposed Existing 
Conditions Conditions 

Subwatershed' Subwatershed' 
Existing 

.  ; \ ""'. '1-' ••.•• 

Wetland ~'. ,
" Change : . E~lsting 

Restoration : ~ .. ;:' .",_ 

C07-02 C07-02 981.6 981.5 -0.1 982.0 

C07-03-s C07-03-s 984.5 983 .8 -0.7 985. 7 

C07-03-s MCR-20-s 987.1 983.8 -3.3 987.2 

C07-04 C07-04 988.0 988.2 0.2 989 .2 

C07-0S C07-05 1010.3 1010.3 0.0 1010.6 

C07-06 C07-06 1014.7 1014.7 0.0 1016.6 

C07-07 C07-07 983.5 983.5 0.0 984.0 

C07-08-s C07-08-s 984.5 986.8 2.3 986.3 

C07-08-s MCR-14-s 987.3 986.8 -0.5 987.4 

C07-08-s MCR-1S-s 986.1 986.8 0.7 987 .6 

C07-08-s MCR-l8-s 985.5 986.8 1.3 986A 

C07-08-s MCR-19-s 986.2 986.8 0.6 986.5 

MCR-03-s MCR-03-s 984.8 983.6 -1.2 985.6 

MCR-04 MCR-04 985.9 986.7 0.8 986.9 

MCR-05 MCR-05 988.1 988.2 0.1 989.2 

MCR-06 MCR-06 999.6 9996 0.0 1001.2 

MCR-07 MCR-07 1007.6 1007.6 0.0 1009.4 

MCR-08 MCR-08 1016.6 1016.6 0.0 1017.2 

MCR-09 MCR-09 1003.4 1003.4 0.0 1003.7 

MCR-lO MCR- 10 1021.5 1021.5 0.0 1022.7 

MCR-11 MCR-11 1000.0 1000.0 0.0 1000A 

MCR-12 MCR-1 2 990A 990A 0.0 990.5 

MCR-l3-s MCR-l3-s 989.3 989.3 0.0 989.6 

MCR-16 MCR-16 990.2 990.2 0.0 990.6 

MCR-17 MCR-17 991.8 991.8 0.0 992.0 

MCR-22 MCR-22 998.7 998.6 -0.1 999 .7 

MCR-23 MCR-04 985.9 984.8 -1.1 986.9 

Wetland 
Restoration 

981.9 

985.5 

985.5 

988A 

1010.6 

1016.6 

984.0 

987.7 

987.7 

987.7 

987.7 

987.7 

984.9 

987.5 

988.5 

1001.2 

1009.4 

1017.2 

1003.7 

1022.7 

1000.4 

990.5 

989.6 

990.6 

992.0 

999 .7 

985.9 

. Change Existing 

-0.1 984.7 

-0.2 988.0 

-1.7 988.2 

-0.8 990.1 

0.0 1011.2 

0.0 1018.1 

0.0 984.7 

1A 988.0 

0.3 988.1 

0.1 988.7 

1.3 988.2 

1.2 988.2 

-0.7 986.9 

0.6 987.9 

-0.7 990.1 

0.0 1002.3 

0.0 1010.2 

0.0 1018A 

0.0 1004.3 

0.0 1023.1 

0.0 1000.8 

0.0 990.6 

0.0 990.1 

0.0 990.8 

0.0 992.2 

0.0 1001.0 

-1.0 987.9 

Wetland 
Restoration 

983.6 

987.3 

987.3 

989.5 

1011.2 

1018.1 

984.4 

989.2 

989.2 

989.2 

989.2 

989.2 

986.1 

989.2 

989.5 

1002.3 

1010.2 

1018.4 

1004.3 

1023.1 

1000.8 

990.6 

990.1 

990.8 

992.2 

1001.0 

987.3 

Change 

-1.1 

-0.7 

-0.9 

-0.6 

0.0 

0.0 

-0.3 

1.2 

1.1 

0.5 

1.0 

1.0 

-0.8 

1.3 

-0.6 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

-0.6 

18 




5.3 Proposed Wetland Restoration Outlet 

Hydrologic modeling of the proposed wetland restoration was used to design the primary outlet spillway 

from the Restoration Site allowing discharge from the south part of the Restoration Site into the main 

stem of CD7 without causing erosion. The proposed spillway is located along the southwest side of the 

main stem of CD7 where the ditch turns easterly. The spillway is designed with a 20 ft wide bottom set at 

an overflow elevation of 987.0 ft MSL and 10 ft horizontal to 1 ft vertical sideslopes. The designed spillway 

results in a modeled flood elevation for the south half of the property (subwatershed CD7 -08-s) for the 

100-year event of 989.2 ft MSL (Table 5-2), which is more than two feet lower than Sod Road. Therefore, 

no flooding effects are expected to Sod Road . Neither the proposed ditch abandonment nor the 

proposed wetland restoration result in increased peak water levels within watersheds located south of the 

property (subwatersheds MCR-12, MCR-16, and MCR-17) with the design spillway (Tables 5-1 and 5-2). 

Finally, the proposed wetland restoration project will protect against overtopping of the west dike in the 

100-year event by raising the dike adjacent to subwatershed CD7-08-s to elevation 991 ft MSL to provide 

nearly two feet of freeboard above the modeled peak water level of 989.2 ft MSL (Table 5-2). 

19 



6.0 References 

Homer, CG., JA Dewitz, L. Yang, S. Jin, P. Danielson, G. Xian, J. Coulston, N.D. Herold, J.D. Wickham, and K. 

Mcgown. 2015. Completion of the 2011 National Land Cover Database for the coterminous United 

States - Representing a decade of land cover change information. Photogrammetric Engineering 

and Remote Sensing, vol. 81, no. 5, p. 345-354. 

James, w., L.E. Rossman, and W.R.C James. 2010. User's Guide to SWMM5, 13 th Edition. CHI Press 

Publication R242. November 2010. 905 pp. 

Johnson, PA, R.H. McCuen, and R.M. Ragan. 1996. Highway Hydrology. Series 2, Vol. 1. Federal Highway 

Administration, FHWA-SA-96-067. Washington, D.C 

Kalyanapu, A.J., S.J. Burian, and T.N. McPherson. 2009. Effect of land use-based surface roughness on 

hydrologic model output. Journal of Spatial Hydrology, 9:2, pp 51-71. 

Natural Resources Conservation Service. 2015. National Engineering Handbook Part 650, Engineering Field 

Handbook, Minnesota Supplement. Natural Resources Conservation Service. February 2015. 

Perica, D. Martin, S. Pavlovic, I. Roy, M. St. Laurent, C Trypaluk, D. Unruh, M. Yekta, and G. Bonnin. 2013. 

NOAA Atlas 14: Precipitation-Frequency Atlas of the United States, Volume 8, Version 2, Midwestern 


States. U.S. Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, 


National Weather Service, Silver Spring, MD. 


20 



Figures 




- -

.,... 

--

e Figure 1 
PROPERTY LOCATION0 2.5 10 

f 

.v..... . 

f 
I.\ 
. , 

C Snake River Watershed 

Cl Modeled Watersheds 

Property Boundary 

• 

\""*1 

.l.il'I • •• , .......····/J 

.-

.-

In.11 TI 
,'Ill 

F-.( IT... 

Pine County, MN 

Miles 



-+- Flow Direction 

-- Public Water Invenlory Wate rcourses CI Existing Watershed e 
_ Abandonment Lateral Wetlands (National Wet lands Inven tory) 

Figure 2 
Ditches .. Freshwater Emergent Weiland 

EXISTING CONDITIONS MODEUNG 
_ , _ County Ditch No. 7 (CD7) .. Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland ° 1.000 2,000 4.000 

Pine County. MN 
-- Private Ditch III Freshwater Pond - 

Ex tent of C07 lateral per County Survey (91:3012016) " Riverine Fe e t 



~ AowQ;redion CExls.tingwatershed 

__ Public Water Inventory Watetcourses W.tlllnda (NaUon.a1 W.llands Inventory) Figure 3 
Dlleh.. .. f reshwater Emergent Weiland PROPOSED CONDITIONS MODEUNG o 1,000 2,000 4,000 _ . _ County Ditch No. 7 (COl) ..Frl!lshwatl!lr Forested/Shrub Wetland DITCH ABANDONMENT 
-- Private Ditch ~ Freshwater Pond - Feet Pine County. MN -Exlent of CD7 l atera l per " Rivenne 

County Survey (9130/2016) 

http:NaUon.a1


Figure 4 
nO* Oot' ect. on ~".lo...~\OilI4 !t rr-' PROPOSED CONDrTlONS MODEUNG 
_ PllClicW.... 'n......lDoyWfII_".•• ~PIO~conU'.,UtInQ Wfll...n.cI 

+ 0_ . ~".R..."ID~'ftn..' WETLAND RESTORATION+ Pn....lY _ PropotMW...,.". A."O",,_ o 1,000 2,000 4,000 
o.ches WeIlIO""" INaolion-' We'll"...., ,,,,,.,<'11101)'1 Pine County, MN 
_'. COU'If\lo."",NO 7«:07) _ F...""".III.E"I"*\lIlf'llW.laond 

_F...t,.. •• III.Fo..._'~l'\Ib w.U.nd - - Feet _R_
Ed."tofCO TlIIt .. lllpaof 
Co..rtrrs.. ...... y (at3OI2Ot4) 

http:Oot'ect.on


Legend 

~ Flow Direction o Existing Watersheds 

Ditches - Public Water Inventory Watercourses Figure 5 

_ . _ . County Ditch No.7 (COl) - Property Boundary a 300 600 1.200 IOO-YEAR FLOODING EXTENT 

- Private Ditch 

Extent of CDl Lateral per 

_ 100-yr EXisting Conditions Flooding Extent - -
Feet 

EXISTING CONDITIONS 

Pine County. MN 

County Survey (913012016) 



Legend 
o Existing Watersheds~ Flow Direction 

Figure 6 
Ditches -- Public Water Inventory Watercourses 

lOO-YEAR FLOODING EXTENT 
- , - County D;!ch No.7 (CD?) - Property Boundary o 300 600 1,200 DITCH ABANDONMENT 
-- Private Ditch _ 100-year Abandonment Flooding Extent CONDITIONS - -Feet

Extent of CO? Lateral per Pine County, MN 
County Survey (9/30/2016) 



...... Abandonment Flow Direction - Property Boundary 


-- Public Water Inventory Watercourses 0 Existing Watersheds 6) 
 Figure 7 
Ditches lOO-year Flooding Extent laO-YEAR FLOODING EXTENT0 300 600 1,200 
_ . - County Ditch No . 7 (CD7) _ Increased Flooding with Abandonment EXISTING VS. ABANDONMENT 
-- Private Ditch _ Decreased Flooding with Abandonment - - Feet CONDITIONS 

Extent of C07 Lateral per Pine County, MN 
County Survey (9130/2016) _ g~~d~i::~~:~~abn~~:~~n~Xisting 



Legend 

-- Pub~c Water Inventoty Watereour-.es CJ Proposed Wato~s 
Figure 8 _ Pfopef1y 80W'ldaryFlow OirecliQfl 

lOO-YEAR FLOODING EXTENT 

.... Primary ~k.R.bed:099 1 hmsl PROPOSED WETLAND 

e..... <NerlIow ~. Lowered to 988 ft msl 

0 300 600 1,200 
Ditches l00-year We!iA"'ld R.$toradOl1 RESTORATION CONDfTfONS Flooding E..ocl8nt 
_.- County Ditch No. 7 (C0 7) -- Feet Pine County, MN 
-- Private Dllen 

Extent of CD7 Lat8l";)1 per 
County St6V4Iy (9/30noI6) 

http:Watereour-.es


- -
Flow Direction D Proposed Watersheds 
+ Ovorllow 

100-year Floochng Extent+ Primary Figure 9 
-- Public Water Inventory Watercourses .. Increased Flooding with Wetland Restoration lOO-YEAR FLOODING EXTENT 
- Property Boundaries .. Decreased Flooding with Wetland Restoration EXISTING VS. WETLAND RESTORATION
Ditches o 300 600 1.200 
_.- County Ditch No.7 (CD7) _ ~~~r:~:=~ge~:e;:~s7~~:;~~ Pine County. MN 

Feet-- Private DItch 

Extent at C07laierai per 

County Survey (9130/2016) 




MINUTES 

of 


Joint Meeting Between the 

Pine County Facilities Committee 


And 

Pine City City Council 


Wednesday, November 2, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Pine Government Center 


Pine City, Minnesota 


Facility Committee Members present: Commissioner Matt Ludwig, Commissioner Josh Mohr 

City Council Members Present: Carl Pederson, Paul Miller, Steve Ovick, Brian Scholin, Mary Kay Sloan 

Others present: City Administrator Ken Cammilleri, County Engineer Mark LeBrun, Lead Maintenance 
Worker Pete Umbreit, County Administrator David Minke 

Mayor Pederson called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

The parties discussed the City's lease of the Pine Government Center. 

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:30 a.m. 



PINE COUNTY PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

Minutes 


November 8, 2016 9:00 am 

Commissioners' Conference Room, Pine County Courthouse 


Pine City, Minnesota 


Members Present: Commissioner Chaffee, Commissioner Ludwig 

Others Present: County Administrator David Minke, Land Services Director Kelly Schroeder, 
HHS Director Becky Foss, Public Works Director/County Engineer Mark LeBrun, County Sheriff 
Jeff Nelson, Jail Administrator Rodney Williamson, County Attorney Reese Frederickson, Human 
Resources Manager Connie Mikrot 

A. 	 Meeting was called to order at 9:00am. 

B. 	 Motion made by Commissioner Ludwig to approve the Minutes from the October 11,2016 
Personnel Meeting. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion passed 2-0. 

C. 	 County Administrator David Minke requested addition of agenda items 1 b., 2c., and 4b and 
corrections to items 5b, c, and d. 

Motion made by Commissioner Ludwig to approve November 8, 2016 agenda as amended. 
Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion passed 2-0. 

1. 	 Land Services 
a. 	 Motion made by Commissioner Chaffee to acknowledge the resignation of part-time 

temporary Watercrafi Inspectors Ron Craig, David Russell, Robert Sunstrom, and 
Jeremiah White effective October 2,2016. Second by Commissioner Ludwig. Motion 
passed 2-0. 

b. 	 Motion made by Commissioner Ludwig to recommend proposed increase per diem paid 
to Planning Commissioners, Board of Adjustment members, and Comprehensive Plan 
Steering Committee members to $75.00 per diem plus mileage and to eliminate the 
$25.00 per site visit effective January 1,2017. This recommendation will be brought to 
the December 20, 2016 board meeting. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion 
passed 2-0. 

2. 	 HHS 
a. 	 Motion made by Commissioner Chaffee to acknowledge the retirement of full-time 

Social Worker Marlys Mestemacher effective January 13, 2017. Second by 
Commissioner Ludwig. Motion passed 2-0. 

Motion made by Commissioner Ludwig to backfill the position of full-time Social 
Worker in time to allow new hire to train with incumbent Marlys Mestemacher. Second 
by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion passed 2-0. 

b. 	 Motion made by Commissioner Ludwig to withdraw proposed reclassification proposal 
Memorandum of Agreement for HHS Fiscal Officer and requested Human Resources 
Manager Connie Mikrot review the position with the county's current grade system and 

Pine County Personnel Committee November 8, 2016 	 Page 1 



bring a recommendation for the position to the December 2016 Personnel Committee 
meeting. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion passed 2-0. 

c. 	 Motion made by Commissioner Chaffee to acknowledge the resignation of full-time 
Public Health Nurse Karen Engh effective November 18,2016 and authorize backfill. 
Second by Commissioner Ludwig. Motion passed 2-0. 

3. 	 Public Works 
a. 	 Motion made by Commissioner Ludwig to recommend promotion of Pete Umbreit to 

Building Maintenance Supervisor at Grade 41 with an annual salary of $49,832.28 
effective November 14,2016. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion passed 2-0. 

4. 	 PCSO 
a. 	 Motion made by Commissioner Chaffee to approve salary increase for Office Manager 

Denise Baran to $47,476 effective December 1, 2016 to make the position compliant with 
the Department of Labor (DOL) rule change to the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) 
exempt status. Second by Commissioner Ludwig. Motion passed 2-0. 

b. 	 Motion made by Commissioner Chaffee to acknowledge the resignation of part-time 
Corrections Officer Jessica Ninefeldt effective November 4,2016 and authorize backfill. 
Second by Commissioner Ludwig. Motion passed 2-0. 

5. 	 Administration 
a. 	 Motion made by Commissioner Ludwig to reclassify the Administrative 

Assistant! Administration Office position from B22 to Office Manager! Administration at 
Grade B24. Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion passed 2-0. 

b. 	 Motion made by Commissioner Ludwig to change Section 7: PTO of the County Policy 
Manual to accept proposed PTO accrual changes for exempt and non-exempt employees. 
Second by Commissioner Chaffee. Motion passed 2-0. 

c. 	 Motion by Commissioner Ludwig to recommend proposed 2017 salaries for elected 
official Department Heads at December 20,2016 board meeting. Second by 
Commissioner Chaffee. Motion passed 2-0. 

d. 	 Consensus of the committee to keep Commissioner salary at $21, 844, per diem per 
meeting at $100 and mileage reimbursement to follow federal IRS rate for 2017. This 
recommendation will be brought to the December 20,2016 board meeting. 

e. 	 Consensus of the committee to recommend a non-union cost of living increase of 1.5% 
and a market adjustment increase of 1.5% for 2017. This recommendation will be 
brought to the December 20, 2016 board meeting. 

Pine County Personnel Committee November 8, 2016 	 Page 2 

http:49,832.28


f. 	 Consensus of the committee to recommend the following County Contributions for non
union employees for 2017: 

Monthly Monthly VEBA 


Premium or HSA Savings 


PlanT Contribution Contribution 


672.50 NA 

107.00 

This recommendation will be brought to the December 20, 2016 board meeting. 

6. 	 Other 
a. 	 None 

7. 	 Meeting was adjourned at 10: lOam. 

Pine County Personnel Committee November 8, 2016 	 Page 3 



--

7. PAID TIME OFF (P.T.O.) 

+.()....--Paid Time Off (PTO} shall be granted to all benetit eligible employees. Accrual 
~Schedules show amounts as SkS'liR aro for full-time (40-hour per week) 
employees and willffitiSt be pro-rated for benefit-eligible employees less than 40 
hours per week. PTO skall aeerl:lo BogiRRiRg with: tllo first FflSRth: sf Olfll3ls)'lflOHt. 

a. PTOPaiti Time Off Accrual For FLSA Exempt Employees(CSI tim. 
~ 
Date of hire through Year 4 240 hours per year2 .50 days l30r 
fflefflft 
Start of Year 5 through Year 9 264 hours per year2.75 days l30r 
fflefflft 
Start of Year 10 through Year 14 288 hours per year3 .00 ea)'s l30r 
fflefflft 
Start of 15 through Year 19 3 12 hours per year3.25 days l30r 
fflefflft 
Start of Year 20 and beyond 336 hours per year3.50 eays l30r 
fflefflft 
(MalliFfll:lFfl PTO a6erl:lal aFflSl:IRt skall RSt o)(6ood 80 da)'s/M 0 Ilsl:Irs) 

b. 	 PTOPaiti Time Off Accrual For FLSA CEweretiNon-Exempt 
Emplovees (AB th:r" C4~) 
Date of hire through Year 4 192 hours per year2.00 days l30r 
fflefflft 
Start of Year 5 through Year 9 216 hours per year2 .25 eays l30r 
fflefflft 
Start of Year 10 through Year 14 240 hours per year2 .50 days l30r 
fflefflft 
Start of I 5 through Year 19 264 hours per year2.75 days l30r 
fflefflft 
Stal1 of Year 20 and beyond 288 hours per year3 .00 da)'s l30r 
fflefflft 
(Malliml:lFfl PTO aeerl:lal aFflSl:IRt slla ll Rot olleooe 80 days/MO Ilol:lrs) 

7.1 	 Anniversary Date 
Atl-Hncreases in PTO are based on the employee 's anniversary date of original 
employment during a period of continuous employment. 

7.2 	 Availability of Paid Time Off 
Hours accrued per year shall be divided equally among the regular pay periods in 
the year. PTO is eaFfled aRd 6roditee eaeh: mORtk (at tile I'*'l3ay l3eriod of evor)' 
FflORtk). PTO is available for use as it is earned. 

7.3 	 Maximum Accrual 

Board Approved/Adopted 12-20-05, 10-2-07, 7-1-08, 4-21-09, 4- 19-11,1-21-14, 1-19-16 
Effective 1-1-06, 1-1-08,7-1-08, 4-21-09, 4-19-11 , 1-19-16 
Amended 10-2-07, I 1-20-07, 7-1 -08, 4-21-09, 4-19-11, 1-19-16 

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level : 1 + 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, .. . + Start at: 7 + 
Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0" + Tab after : 
0.5" + Indent at: 0.5" 

http:year2.75
http:year2.50
http:year2.25
http:year2.00
http:year3.50
http:year3.25
http:year2.75
http:year2.50


Maximum accrual per employee is 640 hours. Eml'lle)'ees shall Aet aeeFl:le mere 
thaA si'l hl:lAeree feFt)' (640) hrs iAte his/her PTO aeeel:lAt. Hours earned in excess 
of sin hl:lAeree feFt)' (64O)hoursffls shall automatically be forfeited. 

7.4 	 Existing Sick Leave Balances 
a. 	 Existing Sick leave may be used for personal illness, legal 

quarantine, injury, or death/illness in the immediate family. 
Immediate family shall be defined as the employee's/employee's 
spouse's children, parents, grandparents, siblings, or any 
member of the employee's household. 

b. 	 Upon termination with the County, employees shall not be paid 
for hours in their sick leave accounts. 

7.S 	 Personal Days 
All Full-time non-union employee's will receive 5 Personal Days on January lSI 
of each year. Personal Days must be used by December I SI or unused days will be 
deposited into_a Health Care Savings AeeelolAt Plan (HCSP) administered by the 
Minnesota State Retirement System to be used following separation of County 
service. 

Part-time employees will not be entitled to Personal Days. 

7.6 	 Requesting/Scheduling Paid Time Orf 
hml'lle)'ees shall eeml'llele Ihe ferm eRlitlee " ReEjl:leSI fer Paie Time Off' aRe 
rel:lte it te their sl:ll'lep, iser fer al'll'lre\'al ef seheel:lliRg the ea)' eff. (This ferm , .."ill 
eRI)' Reee te ee fillee el:lt if Ihe eml'lle)'ee is aAtieil'latiAg eeiAg eff fer mere thaA 3 
ea)'s). Ul'leA al'll'lre ..ai, the elfll'lle)'ee shall eeel:lAleAt their I:Ise ef PTO eR their 
timesheet. Department heads shall establish department work rules for requesting 
and scheduling PTO.PTO ma)' Aet ee I:Isee te enteRe aA eml'lle)'ees termiAatieA 
eate Aer may it ee I:Isee eA aA eml'lleyees fiRal ea)' ef CeI:lRt)' elfll'lle),meAt. 
Seheel:lliAg ef PTO will ee eetermiAeel'ler eel'lartmeAtall'lelie)' er I'lraetiee. 

7.7 	 Payment for Unused PTO 
The County will pay up to six hundred forty (640) hours of unused PTO to all 
non-union employee2-s at the employee's then current level of compensation upon 
death of an employee to the employee ' s estate or designated beneficiary. Up to six 
hundred forty (640) hrs of PTO at time of resignation or retirement shall be paid 
50% as cash and 50% deposited into a Ilealth Care Savings Aeeel:lnt( HCSP) 
administered by the Minnesota State Retirement System as a severance to be used 
following separation of County service. PTO may not be used to extend an 
employee 's termination date nor mav it be lIsed on an emplovee's final dav of 
County employment. 

7.8 	 PTO Cashout 
FLSA exempt staff graeee C41 aRe aee\'eha\'e Ihe aeilit), teeash el:lt ayailaele 
PTO hel:lrs. The aee't'e meAtieAee staff, with a minimum accrued PTO of tIwee 

Board Approved/ Adopted 12-20-05, 10-2-07, 7-1-08, 4-21-09, 4-19-1 I, 1-21-14, 1-19-16 
Effective 1-1-06, J-I-08, 7-1-08, 4-21-09, 4-19-11,1-19-16 
Amended 10-2-07, 11-20-07, 7-1-08,4-21-09,4-19-11, 1-19-16 



AI:IAEireEi tweAt)' (3201 hours may cash out eighty (80) hours of PTO in 
conjunction with using eighty (80) hours of PTO within the current year. PTO 
must be used in 40 hour consecutive increments or 80 consecutive hours for a 
total of 80 PTO hours to qualify for the cash-out. Holiday pay cannot be used 
towards the PTO total. An employee may not cash out more than 80 hours in a 
calendar year. In lieu of this 80 hour cash out, FLSA exempt employees may opt 
to cash out under the following provision. 

All f-Employees will be allowed to cash out or move into their HealtA Care 
Sa .. iAg~; PlaA (HCSP~ up to 40 hours (I week) one (I) time per year. If the 
Cadillac Tax triggered by placing the value of the cash out into HCSP, then the 
proceeds shall be paid as income to the employee. 

Cash-out forms can be obtained from payroll. The form must be submitted no 
later than ,seven (7) working days prior to the end of the 80 hour PTO usage. The 
PTO cash out will be paid the first pay date following the end of the 80 hours of 
PTO usage. 

Board Approved! Adopted 12-20-05, 10-2-07, 7-1-08, 4-21-09, 4-19-1 I, 1-21-14, 1-19-16 
Effective 1-1-06, 1-1-08, 7-1-08, 4-21-09, 4-19-1 I, 1-19-16 
Amended 10-2-07, I 1-20-07, 7-1-08, 4-21-09, 4-19-11, 1-19-16 

..----{ Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No under1ine 



7. PAID TIME OFF (P.T.O.) 


7.0 	 Paid Time Off (PTO) shall be granted to all benefit eligible employees. Accrual 
schedules show amounts for full-time (40-hour per week) employees and will be 
pro-rated for benefit-eligible employees less than 40 hours per week. 
a. 	 PTO Accrual For FLSA Exempt Employees 


Date of hire through Year 4 240 hours per year 

S tart of Year 5 through Year 9 264 hours per year 

Start of Year 10 through Year 14 288 hours per year 

S tart of 15 through Year 19 312 hours per year 

Start of Year 20 and beyond 336 hours per year 


b. 	 PTO Accrual For FLSA Non-Exempt Employees 

Date of hire through Year 4 192 hours per year 

S tart of Year 5 through Year 9 216 hours per year 

Start of Year 10 through Year 14 240 hours per year 

Start of 15 through Year 19 264 hours per year 

Start of Year 20 and beyond 288 hours per year 


7.1 	 Anniversary Date 
Increases in PTO are based on the employee's anniversary date of original 
employment during a period of continuous employment. 

7.2 	 Availability of Paid Time Off 
Hours accrued per year shall be divided equally among the regular pay periods in 
the year. PTO is available for use as it is earned. 

7.3 	 Maximum Accrual 
Maximum accrual per employee is 640 hours. Hours earned in excess of 
640hours shall automatically be forfeited . 

7.4 	 Existing Sick Leave Balances 
a. 	 Existing Sick leave may be used for personal illness, legal quarantine, 

injury, or death/illness in the immediate family. Immediate family shall 
be defined as the employee 's/employee 's spouse's children, parents, 
grandparents, siblings, or any member of the employee ' s household. 

b. 	 Upon termination with the County, employees shall not be paid for hours 
in their sick leave accounts. 

7.5 	 Personal Days 
All Full-time non-union employees will receive 5 Personal Days on January 1 sl of 
each year. Personal Days must be used by December 1 sl or unused days will be 
deposited into a Health Care Savings Plan (HCSP) administered by the Minnesota 
State Retirement System to be used following separation of County service. 

Part-time employees will not be entitled to Personal Days. 

Board Approved/Adopted 12-20-05, 10-2-07, 7-1-08, 4-21-09,4-19-11,1-21-14, 1-19-16 
Effective 1-1-06, 1-1-08,7-1-08,4-21-09,4-19-11,1-19-16 
Amended 10-2-07, 11-20-07,7-1-08, 4-21-09, 4-19-11,1-19-16 



7.6 	 Requesting/Scheduling Paid Time Off 
Department heads shall establish department work rules for requesting and 
scheduling PTO. 

7.7 	 Payment for Unused PTO 
The County will pay up to six hundred forty (640) hours of unused PTO to aU 
non-union employees at the employee's then current level of compensation upon 
death of an employee to the employee's estate or designated beneficiary. Up to six 
hundred forty (640) hrs of PTO at time of resignation or retirement shall be paid 
50% as cash and 50% deposited into a HCSP administered by the Minnesota State 
Retirement System as a severance to be used following separation of County 
service. PTO may not be used to extend an employee's termination date nor may 
it be used on an employee's final day of County employment. 

7.8 	 PTO Cashout 
FLSA exempt staff with a minimum accrued PTO of320 hours may cash out 
eighty (80) hours of PTO in conjunction with using eighty (80) hours of PTO 
within the cun'ent year. PTO must be used in 40 hour consecutive increments or 
80 consecutive hours for a total of 80 PTO hours to qualify for the cash-out. 
Holiday pay cannot be used towards the PTO total. An employee may not cash 
out more than 80 hours in a calendar year. In lieu of this 80 hour cash out, FLSA 
exempt employees may opt to cash out under the following provision. 

All employees will be allowed to cash out or move into their HCSP up to 40 hours 
(l week) one (1) time per year. If the Cadillac Tax triggered by placing the value 
of the cash out into HCSP, then the proceeds shall be paid as income to the 
employee. 

Cash-out forms can be obtained from payroll. The form must be submitted no 
later than seven (7) working days prior to the end of the 80 hour PTO usage. The 
PTO cash out will be paid the first pay date following the end of the 80 hours of 
PTO usage. 

Board Approved/Adopted 12-20-05,10-2-07,7-1-08,4-21-09,4-19-11, 1-21-14, 1-19-16 
Effective 1-1-06,1-1-08,7-1-08,4-21-09,4-19-11,1-19-16 
Amended 10-2-07, 11-20-07,7-1-08,4-21-09,4-19-11,1-19-16 



Resolution # 2016-YY 
Resolution Setting Salaries for Elected Officials 

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes §384.l51, Subd. 1, §385.373, Subd. 1, §387.20, 

Subd. 2, and §388.18, Subd. 2 set criteria for salaries for the elected offices of County 

Auditor, Treasurer, Sheriff and Attorney, respectively. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the salary for the tenns beginning 

January 1, 2017 be set for the offices of Pine County Auditor-Treasurer, Sheriff and 

Attorney, and set as follows: 

County Auditor-Treasurer $ 90,900.00 
County Sheriff $ 94,800.00 
County Attorney $ 102,000.00 

Attest: 

Curtis H. Rossow, Chair David J. Minke, County Administrator 
Pine County Board of Commissioners Clerk to the County Board 



Resolution #2016-XX 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING COUNTY COMMISSIONER COMPENSATION, 


PER DIEMS, AND MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT FOR 2017 

WHEREAS, M.S. §375.055 and §375.06 set forth the authorization for compensation of 

Minnesota County Commissioners; and 


WHEREAS, Pine County Commissioners are eligible to receive per diem payments in 

accordance with the above referenced statutes.; 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that an annual salary shall be paid to each Pine 
County Commissioner; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Commissioners may receive payment ofper diem 
(only one per diem per day) for meetings for county or committee meetings; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Commissioners may be allowed and paid for actual 
and necessary traveling expenses incurred while attending meetings of the County Board and; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following be deemed eligible for per diem 
reimbursement: 

• Regular, Special or Emergency County Board Meetings 
• Committee Meetings 
• Meetings as directed by the Board or the Board Chair 
• Association of Minnesota County Meetings 
• All other meetings that meet requirements ofMN Statute §375.055. 

The Board ofEqualization and Canvassing Board meetings are ineligible for per diem 
reimbursement. A Commissioner shall not be entitled to county per diem, mileage, or other 
expenses if the committee to which they have been appointed has paid the expense. 

The salary for County Commissioners for 2017 is $21,844. 

The per diem rate per meeting for 2017 is $100. 

The Commissioner and Employee mileage reimbursement rate for 2017 is to follow the federal IRS rate 

for business mileage. 


Attest: 


Curtis H. Rossow, Chair David J. Minke, County Administrator 

Pine County Board of Commissioners Clerk to the County Board 


	Agenda & Board Packet cobrd 111516.pdf
	PTO



